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ʆʎɽʅʂɸ ʀ ʇʋʊʀ ʄʀʅʀʄʀɿɸʎʀʀ ʈʀʉʂʆɺ ɹɸʅʂʆɺʉʂʆɻʆ ʉɽʂʊʆʈɸ ʈɽʉʇʋɹʃʀʂʀ 

ɹɽʃɸʈʋʉʔ 

ɺɽʈʀɻʆ ɸʥʘʩʪʘʩʠʷ, ʇʆʃʊʆʈɸʂ ʊʘʪʴʷʥʘ, ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 

293 

ʕʂʆʅʆʄʀʏɽʉʂɸʗ ʉʋʑʅʆʉʊʔ ʌʀʅɸʅʉʆɺʆʁ ʉʊɸɹʀʃʔʅʆʉʊʀ ɹɸʅʂʆɺʉʂʆɻʆ 

ʉɽʂʊʆʈɸ 

ɺɽʈʀɻʆ ɸʥʘʩʪʘʩʠʷ,  ɻʈʀɹʆɺʉʂɸʗ ɸʣʠʥʘ, ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 

299 

ʈʆʃʔ ʏɽʃʆɺɽʏɽʉʂʆɻʆ ʂɸʇʀʊɸʃɸ ɺ ʀʅʅʆɺɸʎʀʆʅʅʆʄ ʈɸɿɺʀʊʀʀ ʈɽʉʇʋɹʃʀʂʀ 

ɹɽʃɸʈʋʉʔ 

ɺʆʈʆʅʔʂʆ ʕʣʴʚʠʨʘ, ɹɸʃɸɹɸʐʂʀʅɸ ʉʚʝʪʣʘʥʘ, ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ 

ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 

303 

ʋʇʈɸɺʃɽʅʀɽ ʇɽʈʉʆʅɸʃʆʄ: ʉʆɺʈɽʄɽʅʅʓɽ ʊɽʅɼɽʅʎʀʀ 

ɺʆʈʆʅʔʂʆ ʕʣʴʚʠʨʘ, ʇʋʍ ɸʥʘʩʪʘʩʠʷ, ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 
308 

ʉʋʑʅʆʉʊʔ ʂʆʅʉʆʃʀɼʀʈʆɺɸʅʅʆʁ ʆʊʏɽʊʅʆʉʊʀ 

ɹʆʈɽʁʂʆ ʅʘʜʝʞʜʘ, ɺɸʉʀʃɽɺʀʏ ɼʠʥʘ, ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 
312 

ʌʆʈʄʀʈʆɺɸʅʀɽ ʆʇɽʈɸʎʀʆʅʅʆʁ ʇʈʀɹʓʃʀ ʇʈʀ ʀʉʇʆʃʔɿʆɺɸʅʀʀ ʄɽʊʆɼʆɺ 

ɼʀʈɽʂʊ- ʀ ɸɹɿʆʈʇʐɽʅ-ʂʆʉʊʀʅɻ 

ʇʈʀʄɸʂʆɺɸ ʄʘʨʠʥʘ, ʃʀʃʀʅɸ ɽʢʘʪʝʨʠʥʘ, ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 

316 

ɸʅɸʃʀɿ ɼɺʀɾɽʅʀʗ ʀ ʀʉʇʆʃʔɿʆɺɸʅʀʗ ɹʀʆʃʆɻʀʏɽʉʂʀʍ ɸʂʊʀɺʆɺ ɺ 

ʉʆʆʊɺɽʊʉʊɺʀʀ ʉ ʄʉʌʆ 41 çʉɽʃʔʉʂʆɽ ʍʆɿʗʁʉʊɺʆè 

ɸʌɸʅɸʉʔɽɺɸ ɽʢʘʪʝʨʠʥʘ, ɻʈʋɿʅɽɺʀʏ ɼʘʨʴʷ,  ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ 

ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 

321 

ʇʈʀʈʆɼʅʓʁ ʂɸʇʀʊɸʃ ɺ ɹʋʍɻɸʃʊɽʈʉʂʆʄ ʋʏɽʊɽ: ʉʋʑʅʆʉʊʔ ʀ ʆʉʆɹɽʅʅʆʉʊʀ 

ʇʈʀɿʅɸʅʀʗ 

ɸʌɸʅɸʉʔɽɺɸ ɽʢʘʪʝʨʠʥʘ, ʄʃɽʏʂʆ ɺʠʢʪʦʨʠʷ, ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ 

ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 

326 

ɼʀɸɻʅʆʉʊʀʂɸ ɹɸʅʂʈʆʊʉʊɺɸ ʂɸʂ ɼʈɸʁɺɽʈ ʋʉʊʆʁʏʀɺʆɻʆ ʈɸɿɺʀʊʀʗ 

ʆʈɻɸʅʀɿɸʎʀʀ 

ɹɽʃʆʈʋʉʆɺɸ ʅʘʪʘʣʴʷ, ʊɽʊɽʈɽɺɸ ʀʨʠʥʘ,  ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 

332 

ʈɸɿʈɸɹʆʊʂɸ ʉʊʈɸʊɽɻʀʁ ʌʀʅɸʅʉʀʈʆɺɸʅʀʗ ʂɸʇʀʊɸʃɸ ʇʈɽɼʇʈʀʗʊʀʗ ʅɸ ʆʉʅʆɺɽ 

ʋʇʈɸɺʃɽʅʀʗ ɽɻʆ ʉʊʈʋʂʊʋʈʆʁ 

ʂʆʉʊʖʂʆɺɸ ʉʚʝʪʣʘʥʘ, ɺʆʈʆʅʆɺʀʏ ɸʣʝʥʘ, ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ 

ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 

336 

ʈɸɿɺʀʊʀɽ çɿɽʃɽʅʆʁè ʕʂʆʅʆʄʀʂʀ ɺ ʈɽʉʇʋɹʃʀʂɽ ɹɽʃɸʈʋʉʔ ɺ ʉʆɺʈɽʄɽʅʅʓʍ 

ʋʉʃʆɺʀʗʍ, ʆʎɽʅʂɸ ʇʆʊɽʅʎʀɸʃɸ  

ʂʆʉʊʖʂʆɺɸ ʉ. ʅ., ɻʈʀɺʀʎʂɸʗ ɼ. ɼ.,  ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ɻʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ ʋʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ  

341 

ʉʋʑʅʆʉʊʔ ʀ ɿʅɸʏɽʅʀɽ ʇɽʈɺʀʏʅʆɻʆ ʇʋɹʃʀʏʅʆɻʆ ʈɸɿʄɽʑɽʅʀʗ ʎɽʅʅʓʍ ɹʋʄɸɻ 346 
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ʅɸ ʌʀʅɸʅʉʆɺʆʄ ʈʓʅʂɽ ɺ ʈɽʉʇʋɹʃʀʂɽ ɹɽʃɸʈʋʉʔ 

ɹʆɻɼɸʅʆɺɸ ɽʣʝʥʘ, ɻʆʈʆɺʆʁ ʗʨʦʩʣʘʚ, ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 
COMPLEX ANALYSIS AND ACTIVATION WAYS OF SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT OF THE REPUBLIC OF BELARUS  

ZENKOVA Inga, SARVARI Renata,  Polotsk State University 

349 

ʀʅʅʆɺɸʎʀʀ ɺ ʄɸʂʈʆʕʂʆʅʆʄʀʂɽ 

ɿɽʅʔʂʆɺɸ ʀʥʛʘ, ʂʅɸʇ ʄʘʨʠʷ, ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 
353 

ʆʎɽʅʂɸ ʉʆʎʀɸʃʔʅʆʁ ʇʆʃʀʊʀʂʀ ʈɽʉʇʋɹʃʀʂʀ ɹɽʃɸʈʋʉʔ 

ɽʄɽʃʔʗʅʆɺ ɸʣʝʢʩʘʥʜʨ, ɹɸʈɸʅʆɺɸ ɸʥʘʩʪʘʩʠʷ,ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ 

ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ  

358 

ʇʈʆɹʃɽʄʓ ʋʇʈɸɺʃɽʅʀʗ ʆʈɻɸʅʀɿɸʎʀʆʅʅʓʄʀ ɿʅɸʅʀʗʄʀ ʅɸ ʇʈɽɼʇʈʀʗʊʀʀ ɺ 

ʋʉʃʆɺʀʗʍ ʕʂʆʅʆʄʀʂʀ ɿʅɸʅʀʁ 

ɻɸʁɼʆɺɸ ʄʘʨʠʥʘ, ʊʋʈʆɺɽʎ ɸʥʥʘ, ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 

363 

ʆɹʆʉʅʆɺɸʅʀɽ ʌʆʈʄ ɸʂʊʀɺʀɿɸʎʀʀ ʊʆʏɽʂ ʕʂʆʅʆʄʀʏɽʉʂʆɻʆ ʈʆʉʊɸ ɺ ʈɽɻʀʆʅɸʍ 

ʈɽʉʇʋɹʃʀʂʀ ɹɽʃɸʈʋʉʔ ʅɸ ʆʉʅʆɺɽ ʆʎɽʅʂʀ ɸʉʀʄʄɽʊʈʀʏʅʆʉʊʀ ʀʍ ʈɸɿɺʀʊʀʗ ʀ 

ʀʉʇʆʃʔɿʆɺɸʅʀʗ ʌɸʂʊʆʈʆɺ ʕʂʆʅʆʄʀʂʀ ɿʅɸʅʀʁ 

ɻʆʈɼʀɽʅʂʆ ʆʣʴʛʘ, ʄʆʃʏɸʅ ʀʣʴʷ,  ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 

368 

ʄɸʃʓʁ ɹʀɿʅɽʉ ʀ ɽɻʆ ʈʆʃʔ ɺ ʌʆʈʄʀʈʆɺɸʅʀʀ ɹʀɿʅɽʉ ʉʈɽɼʓ ʈɽɻʀʆʅʆɺ 

ʈɽʉʇʋɹʃʀʂʀ ɹɽʃɸʈʋʉʔ 

ʃʀʉʀʏɽʅʆʂ ɽʣʝʥʘ, ɻʋʂʆɺɸ ɼʘʨʴʷ, ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 

374 

ʈʀʉʂʀ ɺ ɼɽʗʊɽʃʔʅʆʉʊʀ ʂʆʄʄɽʈʏɽʉʂʀʍ ʆʈɻɸʅʀɿɸʎʀʁ 

ʉɸʇɽɻʆ ʀʥʥʘ, ɻʀʄʈʆ ʅʠʥʘ, ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 
378 

ʀʅɺɽʉʊʀʎʀʆʅʅʓʁ ʂʃʀʄɸʊ ʀ ʀʅʅʆɺɸʎʀʆʅʅʆɽ ʈɸɿɺʀʊʀɽ ʈɽʉʇʋɹʃʀʂʀ 

ɹɽʃɸʈʋʉʔ 

ʀɿʄɸʁʃʆɺʀʏ ʉʚʝʪʣʘʥʘ, ʄɽɼɺɽɼʔ ɸʥʛʝʣʠʥʘ, ʀɻʅɸʊʔɽɺɸ ɸʣʝʢʩʘʥʜʨʘ, ʇʦʣʦʮʢʠʡ 

ʛʦʩʫʜʘʨʩʪʚʝʥʥʳʡ ʫʥʠʚʝʨʩʠʪʝʪ 

383 
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ROMANIA'S EFFORTS TO IMPLEMENT THE DIRECTIVE 2011/85/EU CONCERNING 

BUDGET IMPLEMENTATION REPORTING AND THE COMPLIANCE WITH IPSAS 24 

ON THE PRESENTATION OF BUDGET INFORMATION IN FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 

 

Elena HLACIUC , elenah@seap.usv.ro, 

Gianina MŀCIUCŀ, geaninasth@yahoo.com, 

Rodica AILOAIEI,  ailoaiei_rodica@yahoo.com,  

Stefan cel Mare University of Suceava, Romania 

 
 Abstract. Most public sector reforms have targeted the management system, the accounting system and, by 

default, the reporting system. For a long time, the traditional financial reporting of public sector entities was aimed at 

the budget, the core component of the set of financial statements, but also the main management tool of any public 

entity, underlying the most important decisions. Romania, as a Member State of the European Union, is subject to 

rigorous budgetary surveillance, and transparency plays an essential role in this process. Currently, all the efforts in 

Romania are focused on the presentation of information in accordance with ESA 95 and COFOG 3, observing the 

provisions of Article 3 of Directive 2011/85/EU. However, given that the European Union supports the development of 

EPSAS, it follows that Romania will take this particular course of action as well. 

 

Keywords: budget, transparency, IPSAS, EPSAS 

JEL: M41 

 

Introduction  

 In the last two decades, in order to be able to cope with the ever-changing economic 

environment, on the one hand, and with globalisation, on the other, public institutions have been 

forced to adapt to a new context, namely adopting accrual accounting (Severin A., 2014).  

Thus, the adoption of accrual accounting by public institutions has, for most countries, been the 

main concern for almost three decades. In accrual accounting, the main objective of financial 

reports is to provide information useful for accountability and decision-making purposes (Alijarde 

I.B., Julve V.M., 2004). 

 Reporting and transparency are closely linked. Transparency implies that data reporting, in 

our case budgeting data, is accessible, visible, and easy to understand (Bakkal H., Kasēmoĵlu A., 

2015). The importance of transparency in the reporting process of the data of budgetary institutions 

is overwhelming, because the lack of transparency, efficiency and accountability of public 

institutions may pose a significant risk to the economy (Study on reporting transparency of city 

halls and town halls in Romania, 2013). Transparency in budget reporting also plays an important 

role in creating trust in public institutions. In this context, budgetary policy ambiguities may be 

reduced (Bakkal H., Kasēmoĵlu A., 2015). 

 At European level, with the onset and manifestation of the financial crisis in the public 

sector, the European Commission initiated the development of the European Public Sector 

Accounting Standards (EPSAS), aiming at harmonising accounting policies. Transparency in the 

area of public finances and the need for comparability of financial data between and within Member 

States are the main objectives of the EU, and it makes efforts to develop standards which implement 

uniform and comparable accrual accounting practices for all the public administration sectors in the 

Member States (Pontoppidan C.A., Brusca I., 2016).  

At this time, the development of its own rules, commonly called EPSAS, seems to be the solution 

adopted by the European Commission. 

"EPSAS would give the EU the capacity to develop its own standards to meet its own 

requirements and with the rapidity required. It would consist of a set of harmonised accruals-based 

public sector accounting standards adapted to the specific requirements of EU Member States. 

Standards that could be implemented in practice, and should focus on where they are most needed. 

The implementation of EU-wide EPSAS would also dramatically reduce the complexity of 

statistical compilation processes used to transform these data onto a quasi-harmonised basis and 

minimise risks with regard to the reliability of the data notified by Member States.ò (Report from 

mailto:elenah@seap.usv.ro
mailto:geaninasth@yahoo.com
mailto:ailoaiei_rodica@yahoo.com
http://www.tandfonline.com/author/Pontoppidan,+Caroline+Aggestam
http://www.tandfonline.com/author/Brusca,+Isabel
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the Commission to the Council and the European Parliament Towards implementing harmonised 

public sector accounting standards in Member States The suitability of IPSAS for the Member 

States). 

 EPSAS focuses exclusively on accounting reporting, not on budget reporting, and as a 

result, at first glance, the budgetary reform is not affected by the EPSAS reform. However, the 

actual implementation of EPSAS implies a step-by-step process, which could begin in 2020. Given 

the role that IPSAS will play in the development and implementation of EPSAS, Eurostat 

recommends the voluntary implementation of accrual IPSAS pending the development of the 

EPSAS standards (Thomas Müller-Marqués Berger, 2016). 

 Thus, given that budget presentation is a characteristic of public institutions (Shaik F., 

Sanderson I., 2009), IPSAS 24-Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements was 

developed and included in IPSAS, and this standard is applied by public sector institutions and 

provides that "a comparison of budget value and actual value, arising from budget implementation, 

should be included in the financial statements of entities" (IPSAS 24, 2013).  

 The budget process is linked to the accounting process, so accounting and budgeting must 

be integrated into a coherent information management framework, and conceptual links must be 

created between different accounting and budgeting elements (Meszarits V., Seiwald J., 2008).  

 As for the importance of this standard, there are positive opinions in the international 

accounting literature, according to which IPSAS 24 aims to ensure that public sector entities are 

responsible for increasing the transparency of their financial statements by demonstrating how they 

have observed their approved budget (Aggestam-Pontoppidan C., Andernack I., 2016), but there are 

also views according to which this standard has some deficiencies, in that, according to IPSAS 24, 

the budget is considered to be a simple tool for comparing estimated data with accounting data 

(Fabio Giulio Grandis, 2013).  

 The first rule of IPSAS 24 stipulates that financial statements should include a comparison 

of the actual figures with the original budget and the revised budget, a comparison that should be 

made on the same basis, even if the financial statements were prepared on a different basis.  

 The second rule requires the entity to present the differences between the actual figures and 

the budget, unless such disclosure is included in another document (Shaik F., Sanderson I., 2009). 

1. The budget of public institution in romania-between reporting and trnsparency 

 The rigorous and transparent reporting of the financial statements of all EU countries is a 

necessity. In this respect, Directive 2011/85/EU recognises the important role of financial 

statements and the need to build them on a comparable basis, so that Member States  

"have in place public accounting systems comprehensively and consistently 

covering all sub-sectors of general government and containing the 

information needed to generate accrual data with a view to preparing data 

based on the ESA 95 standard."  

 To this end, Directive 2011/85/EU provides for an assessment of the adoption of IPSAS by 

EU Member States. 

In Romania, the idea of implementing IPSAS in the public sector appeared in 2005, following the 

recommendations of the European Commission, of the International Monetary Fund and of the 

World Bank. The Order of the Minister of Public Finance no. 1917/2005, as subsequently amended 

and supplemented, even if it does not make an explicitly reference to IPSAS, incorporates specific 

elements of the following IPSAS:  

Å IPSAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;  

Å IPSAS 2 Cash Flow Statements; 

Å IPSAS 4 Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates; 

Å IPSAS 5 Borrowing Costs; 

Å IPSAS 9 Revenue from Exchange Transactions; 

Å IPSAS 12 Inventories; 

Å IPSAS 17 Property, Plant and Equipment; 

Å IPSAS 19 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; 

http://www.publicfinanceinternational.org/authors/vrussell-23
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Å IPSAS 23 Income from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers);  

Å IPSAS 24 Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements. 

 The use of different accounting and budgetary reporting bases creates complexity and 

requires reconciliation between the two systems (IFAC, 2000). This is also the case for Romania - 

in order to reconciliate accrual accounting with the cash budget, the implementation account 

contains accrual information as well as cash information (Alecu G, 2010). The budget 

implementation account comprises all financial operations during the financial year with respect to 

revenue received and payments made, in the structure in which the budget was approved, and shall 

include: 

 

 
Source: Own interpretation 

 The budget implementation account is drawn up on the basis of the data taken from the 

accounts payable/accounts receivable rollover of the cash accounts, which must be reconciliated 

with those of the accounts opened with the Treasury or the banks, as the case may be. It should be 

noted that at the time of drafting of the latest implementation account for public institutions in 

Romania, namely December 2005, given that the IPSAS Board had not yet published IPSAS 24, the 

requirements of the Financial Regulations applicable to the general budget of the European 

Community no. 1605/2002 were observed ( Ilie D., Alecu G.,2011). 

 In Romania, the transposition of the European Directive 2011/85/EU implies the adoption of 

rules applicable to budget accounting and statistical reporting systems. Thus, the attention of the 

national regulatory bodies is focused on the technical issues related to public sector accounting and 

is mainly aimed at compiling and reporting the trial balances of all entities in this sector to the 

Ministry of Public Finance in a consistent way (Study on reporting transparency of city halls and 

town halls in Romania, 2013). In this respect, the Order of the Minister of Public Finances no. 

2021/2013 develops analytical accounting by adding the following elements to the synthetic 

accounts: sector code, source of financing and income classification, functional classification of the 

expenditure and economic classification of the expenditure). The budget accounting reporting 

module (budget implementation) operates on the ALOP principle (commitment, liquidation, 

authorisation, payment) and was achieved through: 

Å the transition to the COFOG 3 system of accounts; 

Å the transition of the revenue and expenditure budget implementation to the COFOG 3 

system; 

 a. Income information:  

- initial budgetary provisions, final budget provisions 

-established rights 

-receipts earned 

-entitlements found to be collected; 

 

b) Information on expenditure: 

- initial budgetary appropriations, final budget appropriations; 

- budgetary commitments; 

- legal commitments; 

- payments made; 

- legal commitments to pay; 

- actual costs (costs, resource consumption); 

 

c) information on the outcome of budget execution (receipts minus payments made). 

 

 

 
 

 The budget execution account 
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Å the issuance of a certificate attesting the knowledge regarding the European System of 

Accounts to the heads of the financial and accounting departments; 

Å the creation of a computerised reporting system for budget implementation and financial 

statements. 

 
Source: Own interpretation 

Starting with 2017, all public institutions will apply a new model for patrimonial accounting 

reporting, by submitting the trial balance and the other statutory documents stipulated in the law to 

a computerised system and by generating, with the help of the system, the quarterly and annual 

financial statements (OMPF no. 1026/2017 amending and supplementing OMPF OMFP no. 

517/2016 for the approval of modules included in the operating procedure of the national reporting 

system-Forexebug). 

Conclusions 

 The transparent, comparable, and unitary reporting of budget implementation and financial 

statements is a prerequisite for formulating macro-economic and budgetary forecasts that are 

comprehensive, impartial, and based on objective criteria, as required by the Directive 2011/85/EU. 

Romania, as a Member State, is currently taking the necessary steps to meet these conditions. 

Budgetary accountability has increased with the increase in budgetary transparency. Considering all 

the steps that Romania has taken since the adoption of accrual accounting, we believe that Romania 

is ready to apply EPSAS in the medium term, after their development. 
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Abstract.  In this article, through the environmental balance sheet we try to get information on the cause and 

consequences of producing all the negative effects both in the past, now and in the future due to an economic activity 

that will have a significant impact on the environment and eventually upon us and our successors.The environmental 

balance sheet is necessary for the obtaining or renewal of an environmental authorization, either for the liquidation of 

a company, the cessation of its activity, even in the event of a change of the holder of an activity within an enterprise. 

According to the law, the environmental balance sheet is based on well-defined and delimited requirements, so 

it is divided into three levels, namely: environmental balance sheet- level 0, environmental balance sheet -level i-  and  

environmental balance sheet - level ii. More and more in Europe and Romania we are talking about "green houses", 

hence the concept of "green costs". The construction of such houses involves a larger budget, but monthly costs may be 

even 90% lower, and in the case of building such a building that will be destined for the headquarters of a company the 

costs will be gradually amortized and the most important entrepreneur will provide a working environment favorable to 

its employees.  

 

Keywords: environmental balance sheet, the management sustainability, environmental impact, environmental 

costs, IAS 38, IAS 36  

JEL: M41, Q51, Q56 

 

Introduction  

An enterprise orientation towards the environment, in every phase of its activity, helps us all 

to enjoy a better environment and more, we will have what to offer to future generations as well. 

And for the enterprise, there are a number of advantages offered by such an orientation, all focusing 

on a good business sense, with environmental performance improving business performance 

(Gradinaru, 2002, p. 120). 

According to (Mates, Tulvinschi, Socoliuc, 2009, pp. 288), the environmental balance is a 

communication document that transmits the endeavor and environmental performance of the entity, 

representing a useful tool for managers to monitor their sustainability impact of the quality of life. 

In the opinion of the authors, the characteristics of the environmental balance can be summarized as 

follows: it is a document approved in parallel with the financial statement; highlights the efforts 

made in the environmental policy of the administration; report by physical and monetary indicators 

the entity's policies and activities. 

The environmental balance sheet is a study that includes elements of technical analysis that 

allow us to access a series of information that includes the consequences and causes of the negative 

past, past, present and future impacts of an activity to quantify the environmental impact. If a 

representative impact is identified, a prospective risk assessment study will be added to the balance 

sheet. 

It is necessary to create an environmental balance either to establish the environmental 

obligations or to decide the change of the activity holder, when we want to obtain or renew the 

environmental permit in case of liquidation, cessation of activity etc. 

In the paper "The Role of the Environmental Balance in the Financing Decisions with the 

Eco-Impact", the authors (Mates, Tulvinschi, Socoliuc, 2009), performs a comparative study 

between the social balance sheet and the environmental balance, given the importance of preparing 

and reporting evidence in the company and the environment. 

At the same time, they set the objective of assessing and quantifying the environmental 

impact of the company, providing solutions to reduce them, controlling costs and stabilizing the 

competitive edge in a more efficient and effective way, both ecologically and economically, 

responding in the same way time for questions such as: why it is useful to prepare the 

environmental balance, what is useful in that section, and how to integrate this type of document. 

Loveday -Ibanichuka, Oyadonghan, (2014), using a content analysis, found that entities 

report their environmental cost without a specific classification to allow them to report either in the 

mailto:c.gabrilacosmulese@gmail.com
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income statement or in the statement of financial position. The study highlighted the negligence of 

the legal arm impeded by the disclosure of relevant costs and effects related to corporate activities 

that had a direct effect on the environment. Researchers argue, inter alia, that the environmental 

costs borne by equipment and machinery to prevent, reduce and compliance with environmental 

legislation are reported in the statement of financial position as environmental installations and 

equipment 

National and international accounting regulations for environmental issues 

The IASB has issued standards that are of particular relevance to environmental issues, in 

particular IAS 36 on impairment of assets, IAS on provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent 

assets and, to a lesser extent, IAS 38 on intangible assets. Although the technical parts of the 

standards do not explicitly address environmental issues, there are sufficient examples and 

illustrations provided elsewhere in the documents that allow guidance in the main areas of 

environmental obligations and provisions. For example, Annex C to IAS 37 contains, among other 

things, examples of contaminated land legislation that is almost certain to be adopted, the 

constructive obligation of contaminated land and offshore oil land decommissioning costs (Loveday 

-Ibanichuka, Oyadonghan, 2014, p. 41). 

According to the legal requirements (Ministerial Order No. 184/1997 on the acceptance of 

the environmental balance sheet), they are constituted by observing a number of clear and different 

requirements, in the form of the balance sheet, namely: 

 
In the practice of countries with experience in the field of environmental economic 

evidences, there are two ways of expressing this link, namely: the adoption of the "environmental 

cost" indicator or the "environmental protection expenditure" indicator. 

Environmental Financial Accounting deals with accounting for, and reporting on 

environmental transactions and events that affect or are likely to affect the financial position and the 

performance of an enterprise. 

IAS 36 states that the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is often determined after 

consideration of assets that are not part of the cash-generating unit, but the standard does not extend 

this approach to the impact of contaminated land, but the stigma effect may be recognized in 

practice by applying a further reduction to the value of an asset after all expected remediation costs 

have been allowed. 

When the effect can not be measured reliably, e.g. if there was no disposal of comparable 

contaminated sites, appropriate disclosure should nevertheless be made. IAS 36 addresses the issue 

of measuring impairment of assets due to environmental factors, the difficulty in determining 

recoverable amount and uncertainties about the timing involved. Reference should also be made to 

the effect of stigmatization that environmental deficiencies can have on prospective buyers 

(Loveday Ibanichuka Ἠi Oyadonghan, 2014, p. 43). 
When referring to IAS 38 Intangible Assets, we can say that the development and increased 

use of certain intangible assets in the environment, such as pollution permits and emission rights, 

would appear to meet the criteria for recognition as intangible assets insofar as they are likely to 

generate future economic benefits for an enterprise which otherwise does not would be able to 

operate and have a cost that can be credibly evaluated. Currently, the IAS 38 is not very clear 

whether elements such as pollution permits and emission rights that are increasingly used in the 

environmental field meet or fail to meet the criteria for recognition as intangible assets. 

Level I 
environmental 

report 
Level II 

environmental 
balance sheet 
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From an accounting and financial point of view, òthe recording of environmental costs and 

the determination of the environmental cost generated by the entity and the related financial 

presentation are the way of assessing the performance of the workò (Betianu and Georgescu 2008. 

p. 48). 

Environmental Balance - an Appropriate Management Tool for the Entity  

1.1 Environmental Level I (Preventive)  

The Level I environmental balance is being conducted in order to obtain information about 

the causes and consequences of the harmful effects of the past on the environment and consists of 

finding the origin of the information, gathering, analyzing and interpreting the theoretical works of 

the available data and establishing a balance sheet ratio level I environment.  

The theoretical level I environmental surveys are required in all environmental impact 

assessments carried out in an area or facility, except where the competent environmental authorities 

decide to terminate the balance sheet valuation after the level 0 balance sheet has been completed. 

These preliminary investigations are indicated for all areas and installations that have a secondary 

impact on the environment, but also to changing the owner, modifying or ending the profile of an 

activity. The environmental balance must identify and quantify the environmental liability in the 

area of impacts of the activity under consideration in order to determine the assumption of 

obligations or to provide compensation under the law or to regenerate the quality of the 

environment. So in general terms, parts of the Level I environmental balance need to identify the 

areas where the sites or facilities under consideration can have a significant impact on the 

environment. With the help of these papers, they will focus on how they comply with the existing or 

to be adopted legislative provisions, but also on the investigation of possible soil pollutants through 

past or near-past activities. 

The use of land in the vicinity of the location of the facility and its area is the field of 

analysis of the level I environmental balance.  

In general, the site under consideration, which should contain a number of details, will be 

presented on: the nearby watercourses, areas of interest on nature conservation, important roads, 

including the description of the local topography of the site and its neighborhood and geological 

structure. Consideration shall be given to identifying any protected object less than 500 m from the 

location we are considering, depending on its location. Trade, residential and residential areas, non-

built areas, recreational spaces will be indicated with a view to specifying the direction and distance 

to the location of the object under consideration. 

Depending on the availability, you will also find details of underground and near-ground 

waters, or general information that could identify location, source, flow, and even use. 

It is very impressive to know the history of the area, if there is access to historical maps, 

they will be presented and described in chronological order, identifying the evolution of the most 

important features of the site as the day of the areas in its neighborhood. If the use of these maps is 

not possible, documented evidence of the area's history will be provided, and it is mandatory to 

specify the source from which these samples were taken. Statements by former employees of the 

unit could be a good source of information. 

It is important to describe all the activities carried out in the area concerned in order to 

exclude any possibility of soil pollution. All activities carried out in the area and its history are 

necessary to identify potential areas that could be polluted or already polluted, and it is mandatory 

to describe it as detailed as possible. 

All waste from the activity we evaluate must be identified, making a clear assessment of the 

composition and quantity of the waste. Thus we will store a waste disposal site (it may be 

temporary or permanent) specifying the storage method. 

If there are any capacitors or electric transformers in the area or in the vicinity, all details 

about them must be provided and if they remain the property of the person who owns the evaluated 

activity. If such equipment is obsolete, consideration should be given to the possibility of 

polychlorinated biphenyls in transformer oil (PCB). In the event of a fire, the burning of this oil is a 
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serious risk to human health. Also, the integrity of the transformers must be taken into account in 

order to determine whether there are leaks that can contaminate the soil. 

Also in the environmental balance sheet I should be assessed the security of the area, 

because there are situations in which an area that is not properly guarded can be vandalized or 

accidental. The security of that area should be composed of a description of the surrounding areas, 

environments, alarm systems or guards as well as site illumination. At the same time, with the 

security of the area, all fire protection measures must be considered. These include the marking of 

fire exits, the provision of access without obstacles in the area, the provision of means of 

maintenance of a potential fire and regular checks in accordance with the current provisions. 

Another area required for the preparation of the Level I environmental balance is the overall 

dissemination of waste water evacuation systems. They must contain the discharge of technological 

waters when discharged into sewers or surface water; rainwater discharging into surface water or 

sewers and household sewage should be removed. The balance is necessary to identify the city 

purification station even to another administrator who deposits the household or technological 

tributaries within the analyzed area, what type of treatment is used and where it is discharged into 

natural receivers (inland waterways or inland waters ). Details of sewerage must be provided: the 

purpose of sewerage, the type of sewerage system if it is divisive or unitary, important details in 

case of a pollution incident. Let's not forget that all observations on the integrity of the drainage 

system across the site should be presented. 

All atmospheric emissions that may be present on the tire will be identified and the air 

conditioning system as well as the cooling agent used by them will be examined and presented.  

It is necessary to describe the impact of noise, the level generated by it on the site as well as 

in nearby areas. If the noise produced by the intended activity exceeds the maximum level and 

causes discomfort, a revision of the existing arrangements will be made to take all measures to 

mitigate the noise produced by the machinery or any other activity producing noise. The last field is 

the proximity of voltage cables, they should be examined to identify and locate high voltage cables 

near the surface and underground areas. 

All of the areas I have described above are necessary for the environmental quality 

responsibilities specific to an installation or area and the environmental balance is designed to 

identify and quantify these responsibilities. 

Presentation and analysis of the Level I environmental balance will comply with the 

following provisions: 

 
Source: own elaboration 

The environmental level I balance sheet shall be submitted by the owner to 
the competent environmental authorities according to the procedures 
presented in art. 5 lit. a) within the order; 

This is accomplished by the above-mentioned authority designed to evaluate 
the technique that has to ensure that all aspects have been fulfilled. If they 
are not met then the level I environmental balance is rejected; 

If there is evidence of potential significant pollution, the environmental 
authority is required to request the development of a Level II environmental 
balance and /  or a risk assessment. 

If the Level I environmental balance fulfills all the conditions, it is considered 
that all the requirements for its development are satisfied and you no longer 

need to develop a risk assessment or a Level II environmental balance. 
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2.2 Level II environmental balance (final) 

The Level II environmental balance is required when an area is polluted or when the 

environmental level I level indicates the pollution of the area and clarification is required about the 

nature of the pollution identified and the intensity of the pollution. Where possible, it is advisable to 

collect a standard sample from neighboring areas that are not affected by pollution, so that we can 

set a specific frame value to compare the result of the area pollution samples. 

At the location of the sampling points, the following general provisions on soil samples shall 

be considered: 

ß  They must be located in all directions, near sources polluting the atmosphere; 

ß  To be located in all directions around atmospheric pollution sources, or at least on a 

sampling point according to its use (arable, meadow, pasture, orchards, etc.); 

ß They must be located in all directions, near sources polluting the atmosphere; 

ß To be located in all directions around atmospheric pollution sources, or at least on a 

sampling point according to its use (arable, meadow, pasture, orchards, etc.); 

On the areas where temporary materials containing dangerous substances or dangerous 

waste have been placed temporarily, sampling points are placed. 

Surveys are required from the surface and under the surface of the soil, and for sampling 

there will be some points on the area's plane. If atmospheric pollution is found to be a major source 

of soil pollution, additional depths will be analyzed, as the surface of the soil will be analyzed 

independently of the depth layers. For samples taken from underground water drilling will be 

carried out using rotary, manual or electrical mechanical tools, depending on the required depth of 

drilling or the geological structure. 

The study of gas and vapor in soil provides information on the concentration of gaseous and 

volatile compounds in the soil. 

The sampling of surface waters both downstream and upstream of the area of interest is 

required to be compared. Even building materials are taken to identify the presence of asbestos. 

It is necessary to determine potential atmospheric pollution involving a variety of 

measurements, starting with the monitoring of low concentrations of pollutants present in the air 

compared to high concentrations of pollutant sources in air emissions. After collecting all the 

samples, except for in situ monitoring situations, they should be analyzed by a competent, 

technically accredited laboratory. 

Once samples have been sampled and analyzed, the report of the Level II environmental 

report is drawn up, stating a report according to which part of the report will contain the description 

and results of the investigations that were presented individually for each of the sections used and 

the other part contains conclusions and recommendations for actions to be taken. More and more in 

Europe and Romania we are talking about "green houses", hence the concept of "green costs". The 

construction of such houses involves a larger budget, but monthly costs may be even 90% lower, 

and in the case of building such a building that will be destined for the headquarters of a company 

the costs will be gradually amortized and the most important entrepreneur will provide a working 

environment favorable to its employees. 

Conclusions 

The concerns regarding the economic increase have taken the place of an obsession related 

to the ability to support this increase. The environment indicators and the green accounting 

indicators try to give the interactions between the economy and environment. There is actually a 

search for a better quality of the development that could be seen even as a condition of the 

development. 

Based on the above discussion, we conclude that if the organization would enhance the 

coverage of environmental financial reports from current reporting practices, the consistency of 

methodological approaches, such as recognition and measurement of environmental costs, would 

benefit from environmental assets and environmental liability. 

Environmental issues can dramatically influence the company's financial stance and its 

changes for long-term success. Today, this new variable should be taken into account in financial 
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and reporting accounting as well as in modern financial analysis as it substantially influences 

companies' risk and opportunities, and in extreme situations, business continuity. 
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Abstract. One way of making as efficiently as possible the historical data from accounting is the comparative 

analysis, the comparative computation, also conducting a study of the dynamics of the researched problem. From this 

point of view, we distinguish two types of approaches: in time and in space. Thus, the comparative analysis over time 

aims to investigate the dynamics of the phenomenon, process or of the researched sizes at the level of the enterprise or 

at a hierarchically superior level, and the comparative analysis in space addresses the evolution of two or more 

economic entities operating in the same field of activity, this type of analysis having the role of generalizing the 

achievements achieved in one field of activity. Starting from these aspects, only with the help of these can be highlighted 

the influences related to: the geographical position of the economic entities, the technical endowment and the 

technological processes, the volume and the range of production. Regarding the performance of an economic entity, we 

can say that it is performing, if it is profitable, liquid or able to pay its due debts in the short-term and solvent, which 

makes it able to pay its due debts long term. The applicative approach of the paper is based on a comparative study that 

will highlight the analysis of the financial performance of two economic entities in the field of wood processing through 

the following pertinent indicators in assessing the performance of economic entities: profitability, liquidity and 

solvency. 

 

Keywords:wood industry, profitability, financial performance 

JEL:M 41 

 

Introduction   

Regardless of the accounting system in which we are positioned, we can easily ascertain that 

accounting policies support the imputation of the effects of a transaction or event on the financial 

position of the enterprise and / or its financial performance. 

Changes in results based on market values (the so called fair value) transform the economic 

performance of an economic entity. Referred to this, the profit and loss account summarizes the 

result of the economic and financial flows for a given period, the information provided through the 

profit and loss account allowing on the one hand the financial-accounting information users to know 

the performances of the economic entity and to assess the future results, and on the other hand 

allowing a post-factum analysis, as well as a prospective analysis. 

Informational  flags of the concept of financial  performance 

"Recognizing the extent of the scope of the economic entity's activity from interest-holders, 

including investors, customers, employees, expanding communities in the context of globalizing 

trends, requires a complex approach to its performance analysis." Performance has the ability to 

access resources, distribute and use them optimally to ensure sufficient return to cover the risk and 

motivate the interest on a path of solid future development. Performance results, therefore, in the 

efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are used, and generates results to deliver and 

develop its sphere of interest.  

 The concept of performance is marked by the economic, political system and governance 

modes of an economic entity and the dominant factor in a company wants to measure it according 

to its own interests. These elements represent the "subjective" aspects that influence the definition 

and measurement of the result. Practice and accounting theory have imposed certain conventions, 

principles and concepts that provide an objective basis for defining and measuring performance, 

taking into account the economic and political context specific to each accounting system. 

 Financial performance shows the extent to which an economic entity has achieved its goal 

of achieving profit. Economic theory considers that for any economic entity this goal involves 

maximizing profits. There are, however, managers who want to get only a satisfactory profit. 

However, the recognition of the maximum profit point is an extremely subjective operation. For this 
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reason, it is assumed that an economic entity has achieved its objectives in terms of profit making, 

if the shareholders are satisfied. 

Financial performance shows the extent to which an economic entity has achieved its goal of 

making profit. The economic theory considers that for any economic entity this goal involves 

maximizing profits. There are, however, managers who want to get only a satisfactory profit. 

However, the recognition of the maximum profit point is an extremely subjective operation. For this 

reason, it is assumed that an economic entity has achieved its objectives in terms of profit making, 

if the shareholders are satisfied. 

 In particular, the enterprise's performance is aimed at making it profitable. Hence, the 

potential dimension of the resources the entity will hold and verify in the future. "Strictly speaking, 

performance is an effect, a result of action; in the broad sense, it can be considered that a result is 

nothing in itself, being dependent on its means. Performance is the whole of the elementary logical 

stages of the action, of the intent of the actual result. Performance is subjective because it is the 

product of the operation, by subjective nature, which is to bring a reality of desire. 

The role of the main economic and financial  indicators that  reflect the 

financial  performance of economic entities 

The distinct assumptions of performance, the diversity of economic activity and the 

particularities of the activity sectors of the entities guide us to the conclusion that for measuring the 

performance of an entity we cannot use the use of a single indicator but a lot of indicators. In 

addition, the objectives of users of accounting information require performance indicators to be 

different. The most important performance indicators grouped by user targets are briefly highlighted 

in Table no. 1: 

Table no. 1: Indicators of performance measurement according to users' objectives 

Users Objectives pursued Performance indicators 

Shareholders Determining the value of the enterprise and the 

ability to remunerate the invested capital 

- net profit and rates built on its basis; 

- indicators that express value creation. 

Managers Estimation of strategic and tactical objectives and 

their degree of achievement 

- indicators of resource use; 

- results, efficiency, and effectiveness indicators; 

- activity indicators; 

- indicators specific to sustainable development. 

Creditors Determining the enterprise's ability to generate 

cash or cash equivalents 

- liquidity indicators;   

- solvency indicators; 

- cash flow indicators. 

Emplyees Establishing the form and level of remuneration, 

as well as assessing the stability of the enterprise 

- activity indicators; 

- Efficiency indicators. 

Clients Estimating the quality of production and assessing 

the stability of the entity 

- quality indicators of production; 

- total quality indicators. 

Public The appreciation of sustainable development - indicators specific to sustainable development. 

"In order to assess the economic and financial performance of an economic entity, it is 

necessary to take into account several categories of indicators, both quantitative and qualitative, 

which pursue all aspects of its activity. The system of indicators of economic and financial 

performance provides information to managers and third parties on the efficiency of production and 

marketing activity, the profitability obtained, the efficiency of the management of material and 

human resources, and the increase of the value of the company in the analyzed period. At the same 

time, this system of indicators allows the discovery of the strengths and weaknesses of the ongoing 

activity on the basis of which measures are taken to improve performance in the future, and 

underpins the development of forecasts for the company's performance in the future. "Intermediate 

balances take part in the description the economic behavior of a firm. These are presented as cash 

accumulation margins that highlight the stages of the year's earnings as a difference between the 

items of income and expense associated with each category of activity. 

Comparative study on the financial  performance analysis of SC Alfa  and SC 

Beta SRL  
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In the applicative part of this paper we conducted a comparative study that will highlight the 

financial performance analysis of the SC Alfa SRL and SC Beta SRL entities, two economic entities 

active in the field of wood processing, as can be seen from the information presented in Table no. 2 

Table no. 2: General characteristics of economic entities under analysis 

Nr.   Informative data SC ALFA  SRL SC BETA SRL 

4. County SUCEAVA SUCEAVA 

10. Nace Code 3109 1623 

11. Field Activity furniture manufacturing carpentry manufacture 

12. Main field Woodworking Woodworking 

 

3.1  Comparative Analysis of Profitability Rates 

 Return rate is a ratio between a result indicator (profit or loss) and an indicator reflecting a 

flow of activity (net turnover, consumed resources) or a stock (equity, total assets). The rate of 

return is a relative amount that expresses the extent to which the capital in its entirety brings profit. 

In the overall economic and financial indicators the rate of profitability is among the most 

sophisticated indicators of the efficiency of the enterprise's activity. In profit and rate of 

profitability, the results of the enterprise's activity are reflected in all stages of the economic circuit. 

Compared with product costs, which reflects the results of the production stage, the profitability rate 

also synthesizes those at the distribution stage.  

The rate of return, as an indicator of efficiency, can take different forms, such as taking into 

account gross profit or net profit on the numerator, or changing the basis of reporting that expresses 

the effort or expense of the production process. The different models used to express the rate of 

profitability have different information power, mirroring the efficiency of the different sides of the 

enterprise's economic activity. Forecasters built on advanced or busy capital predominantly express 

investor interest, while indicators built on consumed resources predominantly express the interests 

of managers of the economic unit. 

The main rates of return used in the enterprise's economic and financial analysis are: profit 

rate, commercial profitability rate, economic profitability rate, financial profitability rate. 

The values of the profitability rates for SC ALFA and SC BETA for the period 2015-2016 

are presented in table no. 3. and chart 1 shows the evolution of the rate of financial profitability: 



Prospects of accounting development:the young researcherôs view 

 

22 
 

Table no. 3: Rates of return 

Crt.  

No. 
Indicators Formula 

SC ALFA SRL SC BETA SRL 

2015 2016 2015 2016 

1. Profit rate (Rp)  Pe/Ce*100 5,00% 3,40% 2,08% 3,20% 

 Definition The profit rate reflects the degree of return of the product, the economic agent, the branch or national economy. 

This is very important indicator for the orientation of the economic activity structure on goods, branches and sub-

branches, looking for those that offer the highest rate. 

 Interpretation  In the case of the first entity, the profit rate recorded a decrease due to the 

increase in operating expenses and the decrease in operating profit. Operating 

expenses increased as a result of the increase in staff costs (in 2016 the 

national minim wage increased). 

 The profit rate is increasing 

because operating profit has 

increased more than operating 

costs. 

2. Commercial Profitability Rate (Rc)  Re/Ca*100 3,49% 2,26% 0,8% 1,38% 

 Definition The quality of an entity's management is validated by the appreciation of its products on the market, a situation 

evidenced by turnover. The ratio between the result obtained and the turnover represents the commercial 

profitability rate. 

 Interpretation  There is a decrease in the commercial profitability rate as a result of the 

decrease of the obtained result. This is due to the increase in total 

expenditure. 

The increase in the commercial 

profitability rate is due to both the 

increase in the result obtained and 

to the turnover. 

3. Economic rate of return (Re) Pb/At*100 8,25% 5,70% 1,42% 1,90% 

 Definition The economic rate of return reflects the ratio between an economic result and the economic means engaged in 

obtaining it. The advantages introduced by the economic rate of return in the analytical field are due to the fact that 

it is independent of the financial structure, the fiscal policy of the state through which the profit is taxed. 

 Interpretation  The decrease of the economic rate of return is due to the decrease of the total 

assets and the gross profit of the company. 

The increase of the economic rate 

of return at SC Beta is due to the 

substantial increase in both total 

assets and gross profit. 

4 Financial rate of return (Rf)       Pn/Cpr*100 6,00% 9,29% 3,87% 7,28% 

 Definition The financial rate of return is one of the major indicators that are tracked by investors and management. With this 

rate, investors can assess to what extent their investment is cost-effective or not. If the rate of financial return is 

higher than the cost of equity, then, through its work, the company creates an additional value for shareholders. 

 Interpretation  The increase of the shareholders' equity influences the increase of the 

financial rate of return of SC Alfa. 

The increase of net profit of SC 

Beta leads to an increase in the 

financial rate of return. 

5 Operating profit (Pe) Pe 521.701 373.261 126.163 238.492 



Prospects of accounting development:the young researcherôs view 

  

23 
 

 Definition The operating profit is the "income" generated by the operating activity and made available to the equity and 

borrowed contributions. This result is therefore used to compare the performance of entities that have different 

financial policies. 

 Interpretation  The decrease in operating profit is due to a increase of the operating expenses 

to a greater extent than operating income. We can notice an increase of the 

employment charges as a result of the increase of the national minim wage  

in 2016 compared to 2015. 

The operating profit increases in 

2016 compared to 2015, as a result 

of the increase of operating 

income to a greater extent than the 

operating expenses.  

6 Operating costs (Ce) Ce 10.429.904 10.990.316 6.075.118 7.460.814 

 Definition Operating costs is reflection in accounting of the costs incurred by the entity, as a result of the activities carried out 

according to its field of activity. 

 Interpretation  Most expenditures in the operating costs category increase in 2016 compared 

to 2015. 

Most expenditures in the operating 

costs category increase in 2016 

compared to 2015. 

7 Operating Income (Ve) Ve 10.951.605 11.363.577 6.201.281 7.699.306 

 Definition The operating income is the income earned by a company in the course of their activity ; also called income from 

core business. For a production entity, operating income will be earned in relation to the products sold. 

 Interpretation  Operating income increases as a result of increased workload. Operating income increases as a 

result of increased workload. 

8 Gross profit (Pb) Pb 399.530 269.470 63.804 118.229 

 Interpretation  Gross profit decreases as a result of increase in total expenditure in 

proportion to total revenues. 

 

Gross profit recorded a significant 

increase over the previous year 

due to investments in technology 

and increased production. 

9 Net profit (Pn) Pn 330.592 232.461 51.078 100.657 

 Definition Net profit is that part of the gross profit that remains after the entrepreneur's equity has been deducted, the salary as 

a reward for his activity, the lease and the rent for the land and the building that he owns, the fees and charges 

directly borne out of the profit. 

 Interpretation  Net profit recorded a decrease as compared to the previous year due to the 

increase in production costs generated by rising raw material prices (wood, 

timber). 

Net profit recorded a significant 

increase due to decrease of the 

production costs due to technology 

investments. 
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Chart no. 1. Evolution of the rate of financial retum 

3.2. Comparative analysis of liquidity and solvency 

Liquidity refers to the property of assets to turn into money, and this can also be a criterion 

for grouping positions in the balance sheet. Thus, in theory and economic practice, the term 

liquidity refers to rapport between assets in the sense that it can be determined how much of the 

asset is in the liquid form in the cash accounts and how it can become liquid immediately. 

Solvency is a wider notion and represents the ability of the economic entity to deal with debt 

over a longer period of time. Here comes in the discussion the comparison between the assets and 

liabilities, respectively the availability and the obligations. 

It is obvious that an economic entity is solvable if it has available means of payment. 

Starting from here, different indicators have been built, which include both notions, being used for 

different purposes. For example, at the time of declaring bankruptcy, the degree of liquidity can be 

calculated as a ratio between liquid assets and can become liquid to total debts. 

 The values of the liquidity and solvency ratios for SC ALFA and SC BETA for the period 

2015-2016 are presented in Table no. 4: 
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Table no. 4: Solvency and liquidity ratios 

Crt.  

No. 

Indicator  Formula SC ALFA SRL SC BETA SRL 

2015 2016 2015 2016 

1. Current liquidity rate (Rlc)  Ac/Dts 1,42 1,78 0,81 0,76 

 Definition The current liquidity rate is one of the most significant financial ratios of an entity and measures its ability to pay 

short-term debts using short-term assets of the balance sheet. The higher its value, the greater the ability of the entity 

to pay its current debts, without calling for long-term resources or new loans. 

 Interpretation  The value of the rate is close to the minimum threshold of 1.5, which would 

ensure that all current debts are covered by circulating assets at least once. 

The indicator has a subunit value, 

indicating an imbalance in the 

companyôs treasury. 

2. Quick Liquidity Ratio (Rlr)  (Ac ï St)/Dts 0,43 0,25 0,42 0,30 

 Definition The quick liquidity ratio is the indicator that measures the entity's ability, at one point, to cover its short-term 

liabilities by capitalizing on all current high liquidity assets. 

 Interpretation  The values of this indicator are below the normal value, as the share of stocks in total current assets is significant. 

These companies, through their main object of activity, have to supply with large and varied quantities of raw 

material (wood). 

3. Immediate liquidity rate (Rli)  Db/Dts 0,26 0,91 0,09 0,21 

 Definition The immediate liquidity ratio is the indicator that measures the entity's ability, at one point, to cover its short-term 

liabilities with the available cash resources accessible to it. 

 Interpretation  The value of the indicator in the first year is close to the optimal value (0.25), 

indicating that the company can cover its short-term debts from its own cash 

resources. In 2016, as a result of the decline in cash availability, the indicator 

is rising. 

In the first year, the value of the 

indicator is low because the cash 

availability is low. The following 

year, the value of the indicator 

approaches the optimal value of 

0.25, as a result of the increase in 

the available funds. 

4. Solvency (Rs) At/Dt*100 121,32 129,74 163,17 139,39 

 Definition Solvency is the ability of an economic agent to pay the debt it has to a creditor, at the pre-defined payment deadline. 

 Interpretation  The indicator has values> 1, indicating that companies have the ability to pay current and long-term liabilities to 

third parties. 
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In chart no. 2, the evolution of the current liquidity ratio and the evolution of the solvency ratio will be presented as follows: 

 
Chart no. 2.  The evolution of the current liquidity ratio and the evolution of the solvency ratio
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Conclusions 

The analysis of financial performance is the way to identify financial strengths and 

weaknesses of the firm by correctly establishing the relationship between balance sheet items and 

the profit and loss account. Thus, the results of the analysis provided us with a long-term prognosis 

and the economic growth can be identified with the aid of financial performance. We can say that 

the analysis of financial statements is a process of assessing the relationship between the 

components of financial reporting in order to find out on the one hand the financial position and on 

the other hand the financial performance of the economic entities. The applicative approach 

considered the economic and financial analysis of the two economic and financial entities in the 

field of wood processing, but with different object of activity (SC ALFA - furniture manufacturer, 

and SC BETA wood-carpentry from stratified wood manufacturer).  

In the Romanian market economy, all societies have the same chances and rights from the 

beginning but the way they are modeled by management and the fiscal framework correlated with 

the legal norms defines each individual entity and lead it to success or bankruptcy. The economic 

and financial analysis we have realized has provided us with important information regarding the 

two entities under review, the annual financial reports, the balance sheet and the profit and loss 

account and helped to determine the analysis indicators for the two entities for the analysis period 

2015-2016. From the analysis, it could be noticed that in the case of SC Alfa, the decrease of the 

profit rate is due to the increase in operating expenses and the decrease of the operating profit, and 

to the SC Beta entity, the profit rate is increasing because the operating profit increased in a 

proportion higher than operating costs. 

According to the above data, we can say that the two entities are profitable; both have the 

chance to expand even more on our country and internationally because they have a wide range of 

state-of-the-art high performance equipment and machines, eager professional employees always 

learn new things and stay up with the technology that evolves from day to day. 
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Abstract. Through this article we aim to make a comparative analysis on the degree of achievement of the five 

nominal convergence criteria laid down by the Treaty of Maastricht, by the following member of Central and South-

Eastern Europe (ECSE): Bulgaria, Poland, the Czech Republic and Hungary. 

The convergence criteria to be analyzed are the following: the criterion of sustainable stability of prices, the 

criterion of the budget deficit, the criterion of the public debt, the criterion of convergence of the interest and the 

criterion in the exchange rate. 

In the second part of the study, we have examined the extent to which the Member above, (to which we add and 

Romania) have fulfilled the convergence criteria. The criteria to be analyzed are: the level of per capita GDP/ 

calculated in purchasing power parities, labor productivity, the degree of the opening of the economy, the share of the 

main economic sectors in GDP and the share of the bilateral trade with the EU in total trade. 

 

Keywords: convergence criteria, criterion of the budget deficit, criterion in the exchange rate,criterion of the 

public debt 

JEL:  P 34, P 39 

 

Introduction  

The European Union is a significant actor on the world stage, changing the way Europeans 

live and how the rest of the world perceives Europe. The main objective of the European Union is 

to promote balanced economic and social development by creating an area without internal borders 

by strengthening economic and social unity and by setting up an Economic and Monetary Union 

(EMU) with the ultimate goal of a single currency. 

Romania is part of the European project in 2007, officially. The monetary revolution 

embodied in the euro involves more than the elimination of national currencies and the distribution 

of colored banknotes and coins across Europe. It brings about the unification of the EU common 

goods and services market, major structural changes in tax-impartiality countries and the 

reorganization of monetary policy in some of the world's most advanced industrialized economies. 

At first, the trans-European currency seemed to have little significance outside the banking and 

tourism circles. 

At present, out of the 28 Member States of the European Union, only 19 countries have 

adopted the euro as their single currency, meaning that they fully participate in the third stage of 

economic and monetary union 

The idea of this work came up against the background of the advanced training of the states 

in the Eastern bloc of the European Union for admission to the higher integration stage. The Euro 

Area Admission Process (EE) raised a series of questions about meeting the convergence criteria for 

the Economic and Monetary Union. 

The paper also contains a larger case study, presented in chapter four. Here we performed a 

comparative analysis of the fulfillment of the five nominal convergence criteria established by the 

Maastricht Treaty by the following CEECs: Bulgaria, Poland, the Czech Republic and Hungary. 

The convergence criteria analyzed are as follows: the criterion of sustainable price stability, the 

budget deficit criterion, the public debt criterion, the interest rate convergence criterion, and the 

exchange rate criterion. 

By consulting the Eurostat database and the convergence reports published by the European 

Central Bank and the European Commission, we have obtained the information needed for the case 

study. This information was organized in such a way that it allowed me to analyze the evolution of 

the nominal convergence criteria for the period 2006-2016 for each state. 
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In the second part of the case study, we also analyzed the extent to which the above states 

(to which we add Romania) have fulfilled the real convergence criteria. The criteria analyzed are: 

GDP per capita calculated at purchasing power parity, labor productivity, economic opening degree, 

share of the main economic sectors in GDP and the share of bilateral trade with the EU in total 

trade. 

1. Stages of introduction of the euro 

The single currency was introduced only after three different stages: 

Å The first phase (2 May 1998 - 1 January 1999) took place at the European Council meeting 

in Brussels when the 15 EU countries were selected to meet the convergence criteria. As a result of 

the selections, only 11 countries have moved to the next stage, due to the fact that three of them 

(Denmark, Great Britain and Sweden), although they have been set up in the required requirements 

from the start, considered it appropriate to be in outside the euro area. 

Å In the second phase (January 1, 1999 - December 31, 2001), the euro existed only as an 

account currency. Although at this stage the European Union has stated, as regards the use of the 

euro as a currency, that it is not an obligation but has not specifically banned it, it has begun to be 

used on the financial markets, the foreign exchange markets and compensation. 

Å The third stage (initially set to run between 1 January 2002 and 1 July 2002, then reduced 

until 28 February 2002) involved the emergence of euro banknotes and coins and the withdrawal of 

national currencies in the 12 participating countries euro area at that time. Since 1 March 2002, the 

euro has remained the only legal means of payment for euro area countries. 

2. The Maastricht criteria and their fulfillment by Romania  

The Maastricht Treaty details the formal criteria to be met by an economy in order to be 

eligible for membership of the Economic and Monetary Union. The main objective pursued by this 

Treaty is: "Promote economic and social progress, which is balanced and sober, through the 

existence of an area without internal borders, through economic and social cohesion, and by 

establishing an Economic and Monetary Union having as the final stage of adopting a single 

currency ". 

The Maastricht Treaty pursues through established objectives the imposition of precise 

standards for achieving a stable and sustainable economic and monetary union. Elements that were 

considered to be key indicators that highlight the performance of an economy are inflation, debt, 

interest rate, budget deficit and exchange rate level. 

2.1 Nominal convergence criterion on price stability 

The price stability criterion prefers that the inflation rate should not exceed by one year 

before the average inflation rate in the top three Member States that have achieved the best price 

stability performance by more than 1.5%; 

In Romania over the last 10 years, this indicator fluctuated within a relatively wide range, 

ranging from -1.1% to 7.9%, and the average of the period was at a high level, ie 4.3%. 

2.2 Nominal interest rate convergence criterion 

The definition referred to in the fourth indent of Article 140 (1) TFEU states: "The interest 

rate convergence criterion during a one year period prior to the examination means that a Member 

State had a long-term average nominal interest rate which may not exceed by more than 2 

percentage points that of not more than three Member States which have achieved the best results in 

price stability. Interest rates are calculated on the basis of long-term government bond yields or 

comparable securities, taking into account the differences in national definitions " 

Analyzing retrospectively, the nominal long-term interest rate in Romania recorded an 

upward trend until 2009, followed by a downward trend, reaching 3.6% in 2016. Thus, from the 

7.2% recorded in 2006, it reached 9.7% in 2009. Long-term interest rates have been on a downward 

trend since 2009, with 12-month average rates falling from around 10% to below 4% . 
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2.3 The nominal convergence criterion on the budget deficit 

The government budget deficit (planned or actual) should not exceed 3 percent of GDP; if 

this value is exceeded, the budget deficit has to be substantially and continuously reduced to a value 

close to the benchmark or the excess over the reference value has to be exceptional and temporary. 

In 2009, Romania recorded a budget deficit of 9.5% of GDP, well above the 3% reference 

value. With the support of the measures implemented under the three consecutive EU / IMF 

financial assistance programs, the budget deficit has been progressively reduced and in 2014 

Romania has reached its medium-term budgetary objective, ie a deficit of 1% of GDP in structural 

terms. This happened a year earlier than planned. In 2015, strong economic growth and better 

compliance with tax obligations contributed to high revenues. At the same time, savings from low-

cost public investment and less co-financing of EU-funded projects compared to the budget have 

led to lower spending. Consequently, it is estimated that in 2015 the budget deficit reached 1.1% of 

GDP in nominal terms and 1% of GDP in structural terms, and therefore remained at the level of the 

medium-term budgetary objective. 

2.4 The nominal convergence criterion on public debt 

According to Maastricht, the public debt should not exceed 60 percent of GDP, and if it 

records higher values, it should decrease significantly and approach the benchmark at a satisfactory 

pace. Government debt, according to EU methodology, was at the end of 2016 at 37.6% of GDP, 

well below the 60% ceiling set by the Maastricht Treaty. At the end of February 2017, government 

debt was 37.5% of GDP, of which domestic debt accounted for 19.6% of GDP and external debt 

was 17.9% of GDP 

2.5 Nominal convergence criterion on exchange rates 

The exchange rate must be kept within the range of the exchange rate fluctuation margins 

(ERM II) over a period of at least two years without severe tensions, in particular without initiating 

the devaluation of the national currency on its own initiative compared to the euro. The exchange 

rate stability depends on the fulfillment of the inflation rate criterion. The national currency must 

fall within a narrow fluctuation band of ± 2.25% and a wider range of ± 15% for two years before 

entering the ERM II European Exchange Rate Mechanism. In practice, the European Commission 

and the ECB can tolerate a band of -2.25% / + 15%, with a narrow bandwidth violation, but only in 

the sense of appreciation. 

The low short-term volatility of the leu reflects the positive effects associated with the EU-

IMF international financial assistance to Romania by the end of 2015, the favorable world market 

conditions as well as the NBR's operations on the interbank and foreign exchange markets. 

Compared to April 2014, the exchange rate of the RON against the euro was virtually unchanged in 

April 2016. 

3. Comparative analysis of real convergence in ECSE countries 

Alongside the nominal convergence criteria, but without being subject to the Maastricht 

Treaty, a number of criteria have emerged at the initiative of the European Commission and the 

European Central Bank to ensure the convergence and cohesion of the economic structures of the 

Member States and the candidate countries. These criteria are also called the real convergence 

criteria, regarding: 

Å the degree of opening of the economy, calculated as a share of external trade in GDP; 

Å the share of bilateral trade with the EU Member States in the total foreign trade; 

Å the structure of the economy in the three main branches (industry, agriculture and 

services); 

Å per capita GDP, calculated on purchasing power parity; 

¶ work productivity 

Even though the Maastricht Treaty does not refer to the real convergence criteria between 

the EU Member States, the European Commission has implemented a set of measures by ensuring a 

high degree of similiarity and cohesion of the member states' economies. 
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The European Commission and the European Central Bank have warned on many occasions 

about the risks that may arise in the adoption of the euro by a country whose real convergence with 

Western European structures is insufficient. 

 

3.1 GDP per capita 
Table IV.6- Gross Domestic Product Level / Per capita at purchasing power parity 

ἩŁri /ani   2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Bulgaria 38 41 43 44 45 45 46 46 46 47 48 

Polonia 51 53 55 60 62 65 67 67 68 69 69 

Rep. CehŁ 79 82 84 85 83 83 83 84 86 87 88 

România 39 43 49 50 52 52 54 55 55 57 59 

Ungaria 61 60 62 64 64 66 65 67 68 68 67 

ZE-19 110 109 109 109 108 108 107 107 107 106 106 

UE-28 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 

Source: Eurostat database 

In Romania, between 2006 and 2016, economic growth was spectacular, reaching from 39% 

of GDP per capita in PPS in 2006 to 59% of the EU-27 average in 2016. In 2016 , GDP per capita 

at purchasing power parity compared to the EU-28 average is 59% (see Table 4.6 and Chart 4.6), 

lower than that of the Czech Republic (88%), Poland (69% ), Hungary (67%), but higher than that 

of Bulgaria (48%). 

Analyzing the candidate countries for EMU in ECSE, we note that Romania is at GDP per 

capita at the penultimate position before Bulgaria, with a value of 59 percent of the EU-28 average 

in 2016. Difference between CEE countries and our country in terms of GDP per capita, is due to 

the significant advantage that these countries have benefited from investment flows registered since 

the 1990s. 

 

Chart IV.5 Evolution of GDP per capita in Romania compared to the average EU and 

EU27 (% of purchasing power parity) 

 

Chart IV.6 Evolution of GDP per capita in ECSE countries compared to average ES (% of 

purchasing power parity) 
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3.2 The degree of opening of the economy 

The degree of opening of the economy can be analyzed in several dimensions: the level of 

trade integration (the ratio between exports plus imports and GDP), the share of tradable goods 

versus non-distributable goods in production and consumption, or the marginal propensity to 

import. Table 4.7 and Chart 4.7 show a compre hensive evolution of the degree of economic 

opening in ECSE countries from a commercial integration point of view. 

 

Table IV.7- Economic opening in ECE countries (export + import / GDP -% -) 
ἩŁri /ani   2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Bulgaria 111,8 123,6 124,8 92,9 103,2 117,8 124,8 129,8 131 128,1 124,1 

Polonia 77,8 80,7 80,8 75,2 82,2 87,1 89,3 90,7 93,7 95,9 100,7 

Cehia 127,8 130,7 124,6 113,7 129,3 138,8 147,6 148 158,7 159,8 153,3 

România 76,1 72,5 67,1 61,2 70,7 79,2 79,9 80,2 82,8 82,8 83,7 

Ungaria 149,7 155,9 158,9 145,5 159,1 168,2 166,9 165 170,4 172,5 174,7 

ZE 75,5 77,6 78,8 68,4 76,7 82,4 84,8 84,7 85,9 87,7 86,8 

UE-28 74,1 75,3 77,7 68,6 76,3 81,8 83,3 83,1 83,5 84,5 84,4 

 

 

Chart IV.7 - Opening of the national economy (%) in the period 2006-2016, comparison 

Romania-ECSE countries 

It can be seen that Romania's economy is less economically open than all the other 

economies of the analyzed countries. The degree of openness was relatively stable but reduced 

compared to other countries of similar size, because economic opening is less sustained by exports. 

Starting with 2007, the degree of opening of the economy follows a downward trend, in 2009 the 

lowest value of economic opening (61.2%) was due to the financial crisis and the recession in the 

national economy. 
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Chart IV.8 - Opening of the national economy (%), 2006-2016 

Source: based on Eurostat data, BNR, INS 

 

3.3 Structure of the economy by branch of activity 

Another element to measure real convergence is the structure of the economy or the 

contribution of the main sectors to GDP formation. 

Table IV.8 Evolution of the structure of GDP per branch (%) 

Sector/year 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Services 54,4 57,8 55,7 56,3 56,1 51,2 53,2 57 59 60,3 

Industry  39,9 36,7 37,8 37,7 37,6 41,5 41,5 37 36 35,6 

Agriculture  8,7 5,5 6,5 6 6,3 7,3 5,3 6 5 4,1 

Source: Eurostat database 

 

Chart IV.9 Breakdown of GDP by industry in Romania in the period 2006-2016 

Analyzing the structure of the Romanian economy by sector shows that it has not changed 

substantially, the contribution of agriculture to GDP has halved in the analyzed period, while the 

share of services increased by 6%. 

3.4 Productivity of work 

Another criterion of real convergence is labor productivity. The speed of convergence of 

Romania towards developed European states can be explained by the level and evolution of labor 

productivity. Indeed, many studies show that the index of structural convergence with the EU can 

increase mainly by increasing labor productivity, which depends on better organization, education, 
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new technologies, innovations. This can increase wages, increase the rate of economic growth, 

increase the standard of living. 

Table IV.9 Productivity of labor per person employed (%, UE28 = 100) 

ἩŁri /ani 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Bulgaria 36,1 37,7 39,4 39,5 41,3 42,2 43,6 43,0 43,5 44,1 

România 40,3 43,6 50,0 49,9 51,1 51,9 55,7 56,3 56,9 59,4 

Cehia 73,9 76,6 77,6 79,1 77,0 77,4 76,2 76,7 79,3 79,9 

Ungaria 66,4 65,9 70,3 72,2 72,7 73,8 72,6 72,9 71,0 70,2 

Polonia 60,4 61,4 62,1 65,4 70,2 72,7 74,1 74,0 73,8 74,3 

UE- 28 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 

ZE- 19 108,9 108,9 108,6 108,7 107,9 107,8 107,2 107,3 107,3 107,2 

After a period of post-crisis stagnation, labor productivity began to improve in 2012. "Labor 

productivity has grown considerably in the period before the economic crisis (2005-2008), to 

stagnate between 2009 and 2012, due to the economic downturn and low economic growth, coupled 

with a reduction in the number of employees at national level. Starting in 2012, labor productivity 

has improved in the context of strong economic growth, but its pace is slower than before the crisis. 

Labor market conditions were generally stable, but the employment rate is still below target 

targets. The situation on the Romanian labor market is generally better than in previous years. The 

unemployment rate remained broadly stable, slightly below 7% and well below the EU average of 

9.5%. It is projected to fall further by 2017 as a result of sustained economic growth (53). The 

employment rate followed an upward trend over the past 10 years (reaching 67.8% in the third 

quarter of 2015), but remains below the EU average and the national target of the Europe 2020 

strategy (both 70% ). The labor market was quite resilient during the crisis, subsistence farming 

employment often acts as a buffer in times of recession. " 

3.5 Share of bilateral trade with the European Union in total foreign trade 

The level of bilateral trade with the EU in total foreign trade is another indicator of real 

convergence. The analysis of the evolution of exports and imports at national level during the 

period 2006-2016 indicates a growth trend, but marked by the current crisis (see Chart 4.10) 

The rising level of our country's exports to the EU shows Romania's high dependence on the 

intra-Community market in terms of sales. The high values of the two indicators in 2007 and 2008 

are justified by the accession of our country to the EU along with Bulgaria, a country with which 

Romania already had close trade relations and before joining the EU. Against the backdrop of the 

economic crisis, we note that both imports and exports have fallen in 2009 and have resumed their 

upward trend in 2010, which is a sign of recovery and recovery of our country's economy. 
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Chart IV.10 Evolution of the volume of exports and imports of Romania to and from the EU 

From Chart 4.11. it can be seen that the share of trade with the EU in total trade has, in the 

long run, an upward trend. Until 2011, the evolution oscillated due to the international financial 

crisis. Starting in 2012, the trend was only upward, reaching 76.2% in 2016, indicating a high 

degree of commercial integration into the single European market. 

 

Chart IV.11 Share of trade with the EU in total trade (%) 

The share of intra-EU exports in total exports was 75.6 percent, up 2.2 percentage points 

compared to 2014. Also, the value of imports from the EU in the same period increased by 1.3 

percent, a share of 77,09% in total imports. As for the direction of exports and the source of 

imports, we have seen their orientation to / from developed countries and less to emerging 

countries, with preferences ranging from Germany, Italy, Hungary, France, the United Kingdom , 

Poland, Spain. 

Conclusions 

The Economic and Monetary Union was grounded in the Maastricht Treaty, where the 

strategy for launching the single currency was outlined and the institutional arrangements related to 

the functioning of the Union were clearly established. 

The entry ticket to the Economic and Monetary Union is obtained by reaching five nominal 

convergence criteria by one EU member country. By introducing these criteria, the European Union 

wanted to give the signals of a true cult of macroeconomic stability. Another advantage of 

introducing these criteria under the Maastricht Treaty was clarity. Thus, the candidate states know 

precisely and precisely the limits imposed by these criteria, which must not be exceeded in order to 

ensure entry into the EE. Since the launch of the euro, on January 1, 1999, by 11 European Union 

Member States, another 8 countries have joined the Eurozone. Currently, 19 Member States have 

adopted the euro, the most recent case being Lithuania on 1 January 2015. This means that 9 

Member States are not fully participating in the Economic and Monetary Union and have not yet 

adopted the euro. 

The Romanian economy is not yet ready to cope with the pressure of the competitive forces 

in the European Union. We can do the same for the other states. Even though these countries have 

met almost all the nominal convergence criteria, this is not enough. 

Also, the nominal convergence process is achieved in a shorter time than real convergence. 

It can be said that the substance of an advantageous integration is represented by a high degree of 

real convection with the European Union. 

Following the analysis of the indicators that characterize the real convergence of Romania 

with the European Union, we can state that our country still has much to accomplish, especially in 

terms of reducing the gaps in the real economy. Thus, Romania needs to stimulate the increase of 
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labor productivity at a higher rate than the appreciation of the exchange rate against the euro, in 

order to increase competitiveness and exports. In order to increase labor productivity, Romania 

should be involved in stimulating the permanent training of force work through continuous and 

professional education. Our country has to promote a strong current of brain training by creating an 

environment conducive to innovation, entrepreneurship, improving economic incentives. 

The financial crisis has shown that the mere fulfillment of nominal criteria is far from 

sufficient for a country to benefit from entry into EE. Sustainable real convergence is a key 

condition for economies that want to adopt a common currency and be resistant to adverse shocks. 

The big gap between Romania and the EU is the main obstacle to the adoption of the single 

currency. 
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Abstract. There is a significant discrepancy between estimating the company's book value and its market value. 

In this scenario, standardization bodies come down to  the need of developing new guidelines for the recognition, 

valuation and reporting of intangible assets. This article presents a comprehensive review of the literature, paying 

particular  careful to empirical studies that would aid standard-setting bodies and decision-makers to demonstrate that 

intangibles are among the key determinants of the firm's financial position. 

As a result of the development of this practical example, we have concluded that, especially at the 

microeconomic level, the lack of consistent procedures or standards related to the reporting of intangible assets leads 

to the confusion and dissipation of "invisible" resources and at the national economy level the confusion is created  

because the value of the entities can not be assessed in the absence of any regulation to this effect. We believe that the 

implementation of a universally accepted microeconomic framework is not impossible, but not easy, due to the barriers 

and limitations of the traditional accounting system. 
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Intoduction  

At the current stage of economic development, businesses gain market advantages not only 

because of the availability of an adequate material base and qualified staff, but also by using 

innovative technologies that are an effective tool for increasing return on production. Many 

organizations have started to make significant investments in areas that were not previously 

distributed. In addition to traditional assets such as patents and licenses, new ones have emerged - 

websites, databases, software and computer systems, trademarks and brands, loyal customer lists, 

and more. Intangible assets are becoming more and more firm in the day-to-day life of the company 

and are increasingly reflected in its financial statements. 

The identification of intangible assets has attracted researchers from around the world and, 

as a consequence, many methods have been developed in the literature to quantify intangible assets. 

The large number of methods is probably the result of the fact that research on intangible assets and 

intellectual capital originated from the wishes of practitioners to create and develop sophisticated 

measurement tools and methods, which has made great progress. 

In Kaplan and Norton (1992), Sveiby (2002), which developed a scoreboard model: the 

Balanced Scorecard; Annie Brooking (1996), who developed three methods of assessing intellectual 

capital recognized in the audit: cost-based approach, market approach and income approach; Sveiby 

(1997), who developed the intangible asset monitor; Edvinsson and Malone in 1997 suggested a 

method of preparing the annual investment of intellectual capital - Intellectual Capital Annual 

Repent; In all of the above-mentioned works, over 30 different methods of quantification of 

intangible assets are identified. Therefore methods / models like Skandia Navigator, Balanced 

Scorecard, Intangible Asset Monitor, Value Creation Index, or Value Creation Pyramid are some of 

these frameworks among others that develop intellectual capital from the perspective of its 

assessment and reporting.  

This paper is based on various empirical studies by researchers around the world who have 

analyzed the issue of quantification of intangible assets. 

Some prospects go beyond simple accounting measures and consider that expenditure 

incurred as investment should be valued in line with return on investment (Mates, Cosmulese, 

Anisie, 2016, p. 68). Thus, Intellectual Capital (IC) and Knowledge Management (KM), based on 

the management of intangible assets, have become a factor of differentiation and competitiveness, 

the concept of intellectual capital being most often used in the literature when referring to intangible 

mailto:c.gabrielacosmulese@gmail.com
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assets . Considering the importance of this intangible element, more and more authors have 

attempted to describe and analyze the impact on the evolution of a firm's business, the studies 

conducted not taking into account the nature of the core business (from credit institutions and 

economic entities operating in different markets, to public, sanitary, educational institutions, etc.) 

In his paper, Yahaya, (2009) argues that the Balanced Scorecard model would have inspired 

the development and implementation of other existing models in the field, the model being 

considered an illustration of "best practice" in accounting. Moreover, the author considers it not 

only a tool for measuring intangible resources but also a communication tool that provides insight 

into the process of creating added value in the future. According to the model and implicitly to the 

other measurement frameworks that it inspired, what matters in an economic entity are not just 

financial aspects, but also non-financial ones such as employee skills or customer relationships. 

 

The conceptual framework of intangible assets by IAS 38 

In accounting, disclosure is an important part of the communication process between entities 

and external users, especially investors. Entities present their results to users of information through 

the most common reporting type: financial reporting, in particular annual reports. 

A more transparent representation of intangible assets in the current balance sheet is 

currently possible due to IAS / IFRS (notably IAS 38 "Intangible Assets", IFRS 3 "Business 

Combinations" and IAS 36 "Assets Depreciation," IFRS 13, "Fair Value"), some of which suffer 

major changes over time. International Accounting Standard IAS 38 - Intangible assets, paragraph 

8, defines an intangible asset as "an identifiable non-monetary asset without a physical financial 

asset". 

Omission of intangible asset information and implicitly intellectual capital may have a 

negative impact on the quality of shareholders' decisions or may lead to significant misstatements in 

the reporting of annual financial statements. 

Intangible assets are a special category of long-term assets that, in the absence of a concrete 

form, can bring economic benefits tangible to society.  

Controversial discussions about the capitalization of intangible investments are found all 

over the accounting literature. International accounting standards are concerned about this issue and 

generally require recognition of several intellectual capital items in the annual financial statements. 

If investors and analysts already collect money information about intangible assets in financial 

reports and find useful information then the need to supplement this information of voluntary 

disclosure of intellectual capital will decrease. Consequently, there should be an association 

between the recognized intangible assets and the voluntary disclosure of intellectual capital. 

The biggest difficulty in accounting for intangible assets is the solution to the dilemma, 

therefore we consider international accounting standards (IAS / IFRS) is trying to answer the 

questions of figure 1,  by providing a detailed guide on accounting for intangible assets at all stages 

of the accounting process, be it: 
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Figure 1. Difficulties in accounting for intangible assets  

Source: Own elaboration 

Content analysis as a method of measuring the disclosure of information about 

intellectual capital  

In order to allow a better understanding of intangible asset reporting, it is essential to study 

the relationship between corporate attributes and intangible asset disclosure practices. Based on this 

objective, several studies have been conducted in the past to identify factors that influence the 

reporting of intangible asset information. This was another evolution in the literature of disclosing 

intangible assets. A picture of the empirical studies analyzed for this study is presented below in 

figure no. 2. 

Intangible assets have become an integral part of the value creation process for any entity, 

this process requiring good external communication to various stakeholders such as shareholders, 

investors, tax authorities etc. Several studies have been conducted over time in different parts of the 

world to examine the magnitude of intangible asset reporting. 

Scientists argue that the demand for financial reporting and disclosure of information arises 

from the asymmetry of information and agency costs between the company's managers and external 

investors. In addition, even in an efficient capital market, managers still have more accurate and 

IAS 38 
recognition and initial measurement of intangible assets, including those obtained 
through the merger of enterprises and created by the company itself 

choice of accounting model after recognition of an intangible asset in the balance 
sheet - at initial or revalued amount 

determination of useful life and damping 

cessation of use and withdrawal of intangible assets 

disclosure of intangible assets in financial statements 

Questions 

During what period will the 
value of the intangible asset 
be amortized for the period's 

expense and if it is possible to 
write such an option?  

 Can these assets be 
reassessed and, if so, 

under what 
conditions? 

 If spending represents the initial 
value of an asset, then a whole 

series of questions arise. Are all the 
costs of creating a capitalized 

intangible asset? 

Either to include 
such costs in the 
financial result as 
they occur or to 
capitalize as an 

asset?  
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reliable information about the future of their companies compared to external investors. Studies also 

show that the failure of company managers to voluntarily disclose information negatively affects 

the perception of financial statements (Bloomfield and Libby 1996). 

Guthrie and Petty (2000) conducted a content analysis of the annual reports of the top 20 

Australian listed companies to determine the level of intellectual capital disclosure. For the 

classification of information, the authors started using the intellectual capital theory developed by 

Sveiby (1997). Using this theory, the authors found that external capital is the most reported 

category of intellectual capital within the sample.  It has also been noticed that although it seems to 

be an awareness of the importance of intellectual capital, however, reporting practices were far from 

systematic. Moreover, there was no established and mutually accepted framework for reporting on 

intellectual capital. 

Brennan (2001) conducted a similar study of 11 technology companies listed on the Irish 

scholarship. The annual reports of these firms were analyzed using the intellectual capital 

framework of Guthrie and Petty (2000). A comparison was made between market values and those 

of listed companies. With the exception of two of the 11 listed companies, significant differences 

were found between market value and book value, suggesting that Irish listed companies based on 

knowledge had a substantial level of intangible assets. According to Brennan, these assets were not 

fully mentioned in the annual reports, or they were expressed in a form that is too qualitative, with 

external capital being the category of intangible assets most often disclosed. 

Subsequently, Bozzolan et al (2003) examined the voluntary intellectual capital reporting of 

30 Italian non-financial corporations for 2001. The sample was randomly selected on two markets 

on the Italian stock exchange. The first group includes hi-tech companies, while the second group 

included companies from traditional industries. This study was modeled after Guthrie and Petty 

(2000), using the same intellectual capital framework with a slight change. Researchers found that, 

as in previous studies on intellectual capital reporting, the amount and attributes revealed were 

largely external capital. The authors claimed that the degree of disclosure of intellectual capital was 

determined, at least in part, by the type of industry and market capitalization. 

For the first time, in 2003, Bontis conducted content analyzes on the annual reports of 

10,000 Canadian companies using an electronic database (Compact D: Cancorp Plus). A list of 39 

intellectual intellectual capital terms was sought to be present in the annual report using a computer 

word search program. In the course of this study, a small number of intellectual capital terms (7 out 

of 39) were reported in their annual reports. 

Steenkamp (2007) examined volunteer volume reporting in the top 30 New Zealand listed 

companies (with market capitalization). The annual reports of the sampled companies for the year 

2004 were analyzed. This author also used content analysis for collecting intellectual capital data. 

The results of this study dishonored previous research, as the author noticed that New Zealand firms 

showed a high level of intellectual capital reporting. The most reported category of intellectual 

capital was human capital, and the most reported element of intellectual capital was the employees. 

Ali and others (2008) examined the annual reports of 22 companies listed on the Dhaka 

stock exchange in 2005-06 to determine the degree of intellectual capital disclosure by Bangladesh 

companies. The results showed a low level of intellectual capital reporting Internal capital 

represented the largest category of intangible assets. Researchers also found that most of the 

intellectual capital reports were qualitative rather than quantitative. 

By reviewing the studies presented above, we can state that studies on the extent of 

intellectual capital disclosure have been conducted globally. For all but one (Bontis, 2003), the 

sample size was less than or equal to 70. Guthrie and Petty (2000) pioneered the use of Sveiby's 

intellectual capital framework to determine the degree of disclosure.  Brennan (2001), Bozzolan et 

al. (2003), Goh & Lim (2004), Abeysekera & Guthrie (2005), Oliveras & Kasperskaya 2005, Sujan 

& Abeysekera 2009) they followed him using a similar frame. 

In addition, despite the different criteria for firm selection and unit of measurement in 

content analysis,  Australian studies (Guthrie & Petty, 2000); Ireland (Brennan, 2001); Italy 
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(Bozzolan et al., 2003); South Africa (April and others, 2003); Malaysia (Goh & Lim, 2004); Sri 

Lanka (Abeysekera & Guthrie, 2005); Spain (Oliveras & Kasperskaya, 2005); New Zealand (Wong 

& Gardner, 2004) has consistently shown that foreign capital was the category of the most 

frequently reported intangible assets. Most researchers found that disclosures were low and that 

they were also in a qualitative form, except for 2007, after which the shift to quantitative and high-

level presentations was observed (Sujan & Abeysekera, 2007, Steenkamp, 2007). 

In studies devoted to the valuation of the company, which show the usefulness or 

significance of information on intellectual capital, various methods of research and measurement of 

intellectual capital are used. Namely: market research based on events; various interviews; surveys 

and experiments with the capital of market participants; analytics of reports of companies or in 

another way, the method of content analysis (Abhayawansa and Guthrie 2010). Although each of 

these research methods provides a unique opportunity to understand the types of information of 

intellectual capital, the content analysis of financial reports has been particularly popular. 

Disclosure of information about the company's intellectual capital has an impact on the 

company's value, and since intangible assets, which include intellectual resources, primarily affect 

the added market value, it can be concluded that disclosure of intellectual capital information will 

affect the market value added . (P. Astolfi, A. ZheniKatsavan and L. Paugam 2013). 

  Frank Schiemann, Kai Richter, Thomas Günther, (2015) analyzes the voluntary disclosure 

of 264 investor conference presentations and "roadshow" presentations of German companies DAX 

30 in the years 2001, 2003, 2005 and 2007. Authors apply regression models to analyze the 

association between the recognition of intangible assets and the voluntary disclosure of intellectual 

capital and the control of other determinants of voluntary disclosure. The authors note that the 

extent of recognized intangible assets is significantly and negatively associated with the quantity 

and quality of the voluntary disclosure of intellectual capital. The authors point out that this 

association is mainly determined by the goodwill accounting. 

According to Castila ïPolo and Gallardo-Vázquez (2016)-  òin the search for the different 

benefits of a socially responsible attitude, organizations can increase their human  capital, seek 

technological factors that increase their structural capital and improve their relationships with 

external stakeholders, which will affect and increase their relational capital, namely, to obtain social 

intangiblesò. 

As a result of the analysis of studies aimed at disclosing information on intellectual capital, 

the author compiled schematically in a figure the summary of the research results (figure 2). 
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Figure 2.  Empirical studies  of the level of disclosure of intellectual capital  
Source: Compiled by the author
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Conclusions 

We can assert that different models and theories of intellectual capital represent a 

generalization of the cost-factor management practice in some companies. In scientific research 

circles, the problems of determining intellectual capital are covered by different representatives, but 

until now there has not been a generally accepted approach to the definition of this concept. As a 

rule, they all rely on a structural description of the elements of intellectual capital. 

We note that although all developed reporting frameworks have shortcomings and can not 

be generally accepted, they are an important step in the scientific field that can offer proposals and 

solutions to build a valid general framework, given that the reporting of intellectual capital, even in 

a reduced manner, highlights the importance it has in the economic life of an entity. 

Following the development of this practical example, we concluded that, especially at a 

microeconomic level, the lack of consistent procedures or standards related to the reporting of 

human capital leads to the confusion and dissipation of "invisible" resources, and confusion is 

created at the level of the national economy because the value of the entities can not be appreciated 

in the conditions in which there is no regulation established in this respect. We believe that the 

implementation of a universally accepted microeconomic framework is not impossible, but not 

easy, due to the barriers and limitations of the traditional accounting system. 
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Introducere 

Gambling is not an invention of the modern world, they exist for  more than 2,500 years old. 

The biggest spread was the dice game. The very word of chance refers to the dice game because it 

comes from the Arabic word alzar, which translates as a "dice game". 

According to Article 3 of OUG no. 77/2009, gambling means the commercial activity that 

meets cumulatively the following conditions: material gains, usually money, as a result of the 

organizer's public offering of a potential gain and acceptance of the bid by the participant, with the 

perception of a direct or disguised participation fees, winnings being attributed to the random 

selection of the results of the events that are the subject of the game, regardless of how they are 

produced. 

In antiquity, the dice game was the most popular gambling being associated with divinity 

and  having a ritual character. The Middle Ages banned gambling, considered by the church a 

capital punishment. In Greece and also in the Roman Empire, the aristocrats spent their holidays in 

specially arranged resorts for them, where they could relax, including playing gambling, becoming 

a current practice of the high society of those times (Ofrim, 2012). 

The most definitive definition of gambling, which has already become classical, offered by 

the Cambridge International Dictionary (1996) identifies gambling as those games aimed at earning 

money or other rewards. 

What differentiates  regular play from casino gambling is "adrenaline adventure" or the 

desire to increase the adrenaline of a passionate player and give color to the game, implemented by 

money-mediation, the act of playing with at the beginning an uncertain and crescendo result, 

unfavorable to players 

Gambling and betting in Contemporary Society is a form of socially accepted entertainment, 

but the risk that their practice will degenerate into an uncontrollable habit with many negative 

consequences, a risk of a fairly high probability, has transformed gambling into recreational 

activity, in the economic activity bringing great profits to the organizers and even in the subject of 

study statisticians, psychologists and sociologists (Rizeanu, 2012, p. 8). 

According to Blaszczynski (2002), any gambling is a leisure activity that includes a 

minimum of five essential components: 
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Figure  1 - The essential components of gambling  

Source: Adaptation after Blaszczynski A.,  Nower L. , 2002, pp. 487-4499  

According to a press release (ROMBET, 2014, p. 1), in the last four decades the social 

impact of gambling on the population increased. The gambling industry contributes to Romania 

every year with hundreds of millions of euros to the state budget, directly assuring tens of thousands 

of jobs being one of the most fiscalized economic activities in our country, with the level of taxation 

Europe's highest gaming industry. In addition, the main fees for this area (license fee and license 

fee) are paid in anticipation, the non-payment of which may lead to the revocation of the gambling 

organizer's license. 

 
Figure 2: The gambling population 

Source: National Council on Problem Gambling 

According to the study, only scarce resources and very low incomes have prevented a 

population coverage comparable to the maximum. We are dealing with a gradual increase in the 

categories of people who practice gambling, and the highest level of coverage is recorded for young 

teenagers who spend more and more time in gaming rooms or in the company video games. 

The results of the Insomar survey (Bucur, 2000) indicated the following ranking of 

Romanians' preferences for practicing gambling: 

 
Figure3: Romanians' preferences for gambling 

Source: Insomar, 2000 

Components of gambling 

involving at least two partners 

its deployment is uncertain 

the final result is based on chance 

participation is voluntary and involves the payment of 
a fee 

bets are not limited to money but it can also  bet on 
jewelery or other personal goods 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

SUA Canada Norvegia Romania

Procentaj

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

Procentaj



Prospects of accounting development:the young researcherôs view 

  

47 
 

As a result of a survey carried out in our country at the level of 2002, on a specific segment 

of the population and the market, which generally has lower incomes but owns access to the income 

of all other members of the household, it was found that gambling most frequently practiced by 

Romanian adolescents are the following: 

 
Figure  4. Gambling frequented by Romanian teenagers 

1. Gambling accounting and taxation 

1.1 Organization and operation of gambling (OUG nr.77/2009) 

In Romania, the development of casinos can only be discussed after 1992, when foreign 

investors appeared. The peak was reached between 1995 and 1997, when 10,000 gaming licenses 

were issued. In 1997, Bucharest was the third city of gambling after Las Vegas and Monte Carlo, 

the casino industry registering a 40 million dollar profit in Romania. 

Between 1990 and 1997 Romania was the "tax haven" of the companies that owned casinos. 

They were legally assimilated to the same foreign investors, enjoying tax incentives, and the 

absence of money laundering legislation allowed the introduction and removal of large foreign 

currency amounts without any customs declaration. 

The five-fold increase in casino fees, which came into force at the beginning of 1998, 

through the introduction of Law No. 251/1999 regulating the conditions for the authorization, 

organization and operation of gambling, as well as the anti-money laundering law made the casino 

market fall sharply. Currently, only 23 casinos work, including 13 in Bucharest. 98% of 

businessmen in the Middle East, which offshore companies run businesses with a turnover of 150-

200 million dollars annually and only two casinos with majority Romanian shareholders. 

The organization and operation of the gambling activity on the territory of Romania is a 

state monopoly and is carried out under the conditions of the Government Emergency Ordinance 

no.77 / 2009 on the organization and exploitation of gambling games. 

The State may grant the right to organize and operate the gambling activity under a gambling 

licensing license for each type of activity and authorization to operate gambling, nominal and 

limited in time documents to be exploited directly by the licensee. 

The activity of authorizing the organization and operation of gambling is carried out by the 

Ministry of Public Finance through the Gambling Authorization Commission. 

The operation of gambling can be done jointly by two organizers between which there is an 

association agreement concluded under the terms of the law, the administrative responsibility being 

shared by both partners.  

The gambling organization license is granted to the economic operator who fulfills the 

conditions for organizing the activities covered by GEO No. 77/2009 and is valid for five years 

from the grant date, subject to the payment of the annual authorization fee. 

The authorization to operate gambling is valid for one year from the date of the grant, as 

follows: 
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Figure 5 - Cases of validity of gambling authorization 

Source: Adaptation after OUG Nr.77/2009 

1.2 Practical examples of accounting procedures in gambling activities 

A. Fee and prize collection 

i. Gambling specific betting operations 

Recording the receipt of the vouchers issued by the approved betting slip in the Home or 

Bank Registry in the form of a participation fee 

5311 "House in lei" or 5121 "Accounts with banks in lei" =% 

         "70401 - 05 - Fixed commission" 

46201 "Sports betting fee" 

46202 "Lottery bets" 

46203 "SixBalls Betting Fee" 

46204 "Live Betting Fee" 

46205 "Virtual Betting Entry Fee (etc) 

Registration of awarded prizes, after validation of winning tickets: 

46201 "Sports betting participation fee" =% 

46211 - "Sports betting prizes" 

7041- "Vendor Income from Variable Fee" 

46202 Lottery lottery participation fee =% 

46212 - "Lottery Bets Awards" 

7042 - "Vendor Income From Variable Fee" 

46203 "RiverSixBalls betting participation fee" =% 

 

Lottery Games 

 

ωfor all activity involving the extraction of numbers, letters, tickets or symbols, irrespective of 
the procedures and characteristics of the means used to make draws (ballot boxes, wheels, 
cups and other such means) which do not take place in the presence of the players; 

 

betsi 

 

ωfor the basic game play through which the organizing and unitary operation of each distinct 
activity is organized at the organizer level 

gambling that is 
characteristic of 
casino activity 

 

ωeach organizer is given a single authorization to operate gambling for the location where 
these activities are organized and carried out        

 

in slot-
machine 
games 

ωor every means of play 

in the case of 
bingo games 

played in gaming 
rooms 

ωfor each location where these activities are organized and carried out;   
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 46213 - "SixBalls Betting Awards" 

7043- "Vendor Income from Variable Fee" 

46204 "Live betting participation fee" =% 

 46214 - "Live betting prizes" 

7044 - "Variable organizer income" 

46205 "Virtual betting participation fee" =% 

 46215 - "Virtual Betting Awards" 

 7045- "Vendor Income from Variable Fee" 

If the prizes are greater than the collected participation fee, the revenue from the organizer's 

variable commission is recorded in red. 

ii.  Slot-machine specific slot operations 

 Registration of the registration fee in the Home Registry 

                         5311 = 46201 "Slot-machine participation fee" 

 Registration of awarded and established prizes 

46201 Participation fee game betting slot machine =% 

46202 - "Slot Machine Awards" 

46203 - "Jack-pot slot-machine" 

            7041- "Vendor Income From Variable Fee" 

If the prizes awarded are higher than the collected participation fee then the organizer's 

income is recorded in red. 

iii.  Bingo-specific gambling operations 

Receipt of tickets to be put into play: 

 53281 = 4621 - "Bingo participation fee" = ticket x price 

Registration of tickets received by operators on the basis of tickets with accompanying tickets: 

  4611 "Operator" = 53281 "no. tickets x price lei " 

On the basis of the documents evidencing the deposition of the money resulting from the sale of the 

tickets, the debit settlement is registered: 

 5311 "House in lei" = 4611 "tickets sold x price" 

Based on the bingo game bingo and party bingo game closure, as well as the organizer's award 

decision 

4621 "Bingo participation fee" =% c / v total tickets sold 

4622 - line 

4623 - bingo 

4624 - bingo accumulated 

4625 - "reserve fund" 

7041- "Vendor Income From Variable Fee" 

Based on the Decision of the organizer of the establishment of the reserve fund from its own 

sources: 

    6588 = 4625 "reserve fund" 

Based on the listing of the game edition printer, the special prizes are recorded: 

 4625 =% rewards fund prizes 

  4626 - "special prize" 

            4627 - "special prize" 

On the basis of the dactyls attesting cancellation of tickets 

                53281 = 4621 Item no. X price - in red 

 Based on the prizes awarded and based on the prize settlement, the net prize payout 

         %                                              = 5311 

4622 - "Line - Net Value" 

4623 - "bingo - net worth" 

4624 - "bingo accumulated - net worth" 

4626, 4627 - "special prizes - net value" 
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B. Granting bonuses, from their own sources 

Bonus - the benefit that can be earned extra by the player, without any additional fees or 

charges, under the conditions set out in the organizer's game rules, for a specified period or for 

certain events. Gambling organizers can offer players, in their own funds, bonuses in any form 

under the conditions set out in the Gaming Regulations (Methodological Norms) 

 6588 "Other Expense Expenses" = 46201 "Participation Fee with Analytic by Game Types" 

C. Awarding advertising awards from their own sources 

Gambling is not considered to be a gambling operation and the actions organized by 

different economic operators under the law to stimulate sales and do not involve a participation fee, 

or any additional expense on the part of the participants, or the price increase that the product had 

preceded the advertising campaign. 

Where the promotional action of an economic operator involves the use of names, means or 

ways of awarding gambling-specific prizes, it is mandatory to obtain the O.N.J.N. 

623 "Protocol, advertising and advertising expenses" = 462 "Promotional prize money" 

2. Gambling Tax (Legislation) 

Even if state budget revenues are extremely high and this is a benefit, at the same time, this 

revenue could be a negative consequence because a higher level of tax rates supports the 

monopolization process of the gaming industry. This is not an advantageous situation for economic 

entities because it does not facilitate the entry of gambling operators on the market and there could 

be a restriction on the services that would be offered under normal conditions of laissez-faire, which 

would lead to capital relocation and unused workforce to produce other goods and services. 

 But as an industry that meets the constant needs of people's entertainment, and considering 

the current economic crises, some of the unused capital and labor will be absorbed by the black 

market of illegal gambling games (Radu R., I ., Isai V., Horodincu A., 2013, p. 69).  

 The national provisions to be taken into account in the accounting activity are: 

-Laws continuities in 82/1991, republished, as amended; 

-Ordin nr. 2634 of 5 November 2015 on financial and accounting documents; 

-The Accounting Regulations of December 29, 2014 on Financial Statements on Individuals and 

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements - Order 1802 of 2014. 

3. The level of gambling taxation practiced at the level of the world's states 

The gambling industry contributes to Romania every year with hundreds of millions of euros 

in the state budget, directly assuring tens of thousands of jobs and is one of the most fiscalized 

economic activities in our country, with the level of Europe's highest gaming tax. In addition, the 

main fees for this area (license fee and license fee) are paid in anticipation, the non-payment of 

which may lead to the revocation of the gambling organizer's license. 

For example, we synthesize below the taxes and taxes with which the Romanian gaming 

industry contributes to the state budget: 
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Figure no.6: Contributions of gambling to the state budget 

Source: Own elaboration 

Since many players are already aware, gambling is not legal in every country. However, the 

countries where gambling is allowed by law, there are different tax laws. Regardless of whether 

gambling gains should be taxed or not, it is a topic that is generally debated. The reason why 

gambling gains are exempt from tax in many countries is largely due to the fact that gambling tax 

laws are not necessarily white and black, but rather gray areas, making it difficult to create and the 

application of specific gambling tax laws. 

In this article, I will go over some of the countries where gambling is allowed and will not 

be fully charged and earnings will not be taxed and give players any additional tax information that 

could have an effect on them, such as how or where to play. Although this is not a comprehensive 

list, some might be surprised to see some of these countries on this short list of tax-free countries. 

In Austria, online earnings are completely exempt, however, the casinos themselves are 

responsible for paying these fees regardless of whether they operate on the web or in physical 

locations. If a person is playing in a physical location then 35-80% of the stakes (after winnings) 

must be paid to the casino operator but this does not prevent players from placing casino bets due to 

the fact that there are 13 cities in Austria that have beautiful and popular casinos. 

If a person plays online or in a physical casino in Australia, earnings are not taxed. 

However, casinos are not out of the hook when it comes to paying taxes in Australia, or, in addition 

to paying taxes, they also have to pay the license fees. Tax laws and licensing fees are different in 

each state, but in any case they do not produce a player's earnings. 

Belgian casino players are also not required to pay any kind of tax on their earnings, whether 

playing online or in a casino. Tax laws for Belgian casino operators are slightly different because 

they are required to pay the government an annual contribution to their license to continue 

operating. 

Gambling organizer 

Slot Machine game License fee = 25,000 lei /  year 

Authorization fee = 8,000 lei /  year /  middle 

Profit Tax = 16% 

25% tax on player earnings exceeding 600 lei /  
day /  organizer 

Life casinos 

Authorization fee 250,000 lei /  year /  game 
table 

License fee = 400,000 lei /  year 

The corporate tax may not be less than 5% of the income 
earned 

25% tax on player earnings exceeding 600 lei /  day /  organizer 

Betting 
house 

Authorization fee = 250,000 lei /  year 

The corporate tax may not be less than 5% of the income earned 

25% tax on player earnings exceeding 600 lei /  day /  organizer 

Bingo Game 

Authorization fee = 500,000 lei /  year 

25% tax on player earnings exceeding 600 lei /  day /  organizer 

Profit Tax = 16% 
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Canadians are not required to pay any taxes on their earnings, no matter where they play and 

win. Casinos are only required to pay regular business taxes, which vary by province, city, revenue, 

operational costs, and must be licensed to operate. 

Whether you play online or in a physical location in casinos, Germany's gambling gains are 

also not taxed. However, if a casino operator operates a state casino, they are taxed at 80% of their 

gross income. However, the tax rules apply to German owned and operated casino operators, but 

they vary regardless of whether they operate online games such as Casino Deutches Online or in a 

land based location. 

Conclusions 

Many gamblers are already aware that gambling is not legal in every country. However, 

countries where gambling is permitted by law, have different tax laws. 

Whether gambling gains should be taxed or not, is a topic that is usually under discussion. The 

reason why gambling gains are exempt from tax in many countries is largely due to the fact that 

gambling tax laws are not necessarily black and white, rather there are more gray areas, which 

which makes it difficult to create and enforce specific gambling tax laws. 

The Romanian gambling industry contributes hundreds of millions of euros each year to the state 

budget, directly assuring tens of thousands of jobs and is one of the most fiscally taxed economic 

activities with the level of taxation Europe's highest gaming industry. 

The switch to IFRS can give gamblers greater credibility and eliminate suspicion and dirty business 

image without having a negative impact on financial statements, moreover this accounting 

transition could be a catalyst for the whole process. IFRS does not specifically refer to gambling 

activities, but these international standards could be successfully implemented by casinos, lotteries 

and other gambling providers. A real example of crossing the entire gambling industry into IFRS is 

Canada. 
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Abstract. The development of accounting and, implicitly, the increase in the supply of information of this 

nature has been linked both by the theoreticians and by the practitioners in the field of increasing the demand of the 

products provided by it, coming from some users whose information needs depend on the economic, political, legal, 

social and cultural context in which it operates. Prior to presenting the financial and accounting information and its 

role in the entity's sustainable development, we consider it necessary to clarify some aspects of information in general 

and financial-accounting information in particular. Explaining the notion of information implies the necessity of a 

discussion between terms of data and information, which, many times, is confused in practice. Data are represented by 

words, figures, or signs that describe or reflect the most diverse facts and situations, forming the raw material on which 

the information is based. The information appears as a result of a complex process whereby certain data are attributed 

to the meaning of the state or dynamics of an object, phenomenon or event, in formal processing procedures. In a more 

concrete definition of information, it appears as a "news" or "message" about facts and events of any kind that must be 

understood, used and transmitted to facilitate the achievement of the goal. 
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Introduction  

With Romania joining the structures of the European Union, Romania's fiscal and 

accounting system has come a long way towards aligning itself with International Financial 

Reporting Standards. Efforts are currently being made to meet the informational needs of different 

categories of users by presenting financial statements in the most appropriate form so that users, 

regardless of their knowledge of accounting science, can extract the necessary information . For 

entities that trade their titles on a regulated market, the issue of the obligation to present information 

in the financial statements as required by International Accounting Standards requires disclosure of 

information in the form of a Statement of Income and Expense, A Statement of Assets, Liabilities 

and Capital, a Cash Flow Statement, and the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

In this article, I have proposed to pursue some theoretical aspects: 

- Why the accounting information needs to be useful; 

- What is the legal role of accounting information presented in the financial statements? 

- Decisions taken by users of accounting information are relevant if the information presented by 

the entity is not useful. 

Based on these issues, the Romanian legislation aligned with the International Accounting 

Standards, the Directive no. 34/2013 on the annual financial statements, consolidated financial 

statements and related reports of certain types of undertakings, we will try to clarify these issues. 

In the first part of the article, I will present the notion of information and its mode of 

reflection to reflect the position of the entity, which is the utility according to the various authors in 

the literature, how the management of an economic entity operates the information to provide the 

information required by different categories of users. 

In the second part of the paper I will deal with the role of financial-accounting information 

in the decision-making process, a role determined by the management of the entity, which, through 

the decisions it takes, puts into play the entire activity of the entity that it manages. The role of the 

information is to provide as accurate and useful information as possible to those who need it, to 

internal or external users, who are themselves the main part of the environment with which the 

entity comes into contact. 

mailto:elenah@seap.usv.ro
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Financial and accounting information- useful and importance in decisions background 

The main quality attached to accounting information is the utility. Accounting has developed its 

power of knowledge of the economic and financial situation so that it can provide, under optimum 

conditions, the information needed to make the most accurate decisions. In fact, the purpose of 

accounting is to make information and methods a guidance tool, a counselor to determine the 

conditions in which the economic entity operates internally, as well as in a macroeconomic context. 

In other words, accounting information is the most important source for management in 

decision-making and thus accounting becomes indispensable in the management of economic 

entities, regardless of the activity they carry out. 

Accounting information provides the management of entities, regardless of their scope of 

business, the choice of funding programs, accounting methods and policies, activity management 

tools, and the establishment of a specific policy line. In addition, the current trend in accounting 

information is to become more operative by automating management calculations, recording 

economic and financial operations in financial accounting, reducing data processing time, 

interpreting key economic and financial indicators, and thus economic and financial decisions 

benefit from efficiency. In the context of the above, we can assume that the accounting system 

currently used by economic entities, and not only, provides the necessary information in their 

managerial process as well as in the relations of each of them with third parties, shareholders or 

associates, suppliers, clients, the state budget and the social security budget, banks and so on. It has 

been improved so that the permanent adaptation to the inherent transformations produced in the 

economic and financial activities within the national economy was accomplished and on the other 

hand the achievement of the objective of complying with the relevant directives of the European 

Economic Communities. 

Achievements of this nature were possible due to the adaptation and improvement of the 

accounting, legislative nature. tax laws that took place in our country when Romania's legislation 

aligned with that of the member countries of the European Union. 

The development of accounting and, implicitly, the increase in the supply of information of this 

nature has been linked both by theoreticians, through theoretical research, and by practitioners in 

the field, by empirical research. Increasing demand for products provided by it comes from users 

whose information needs depend on the economic, political, legal, social and cultural environment 

in which they operate. 

Specifying the notion of information requires the necessity of a discussion, between the terms 

of the date and the information, which, many times, is confused in practice. The data are 

represented by words, figures or signs that describe or reflect the most diverse facts and situations, 

forming the raw material on which the information is based. The information appears as a result of 

a complex process whereby certain data are attributed to the meaning of the state or dynamics of an 

object, phenomenon or event, in formal processing procedures (Paraschivescu, 1999, p. 99). In a 

more concrete definition of information, it appears as "a news or message about facts and events of 

any kind that must be understood, used and transmitted to facilitate the achievement of the 

quantified objective." (Popescu, 1977, p. 84). In the literature, we find numerous attempts to define 

this notion, but we think that a generally valid definition is virtually impossible because 

"information is practically open to more disciplines."(Stössel, Ogodescu, 1978
 p. 14).  In the economic 

activity, the information links the objectives proposed by the entity at the beginning of the year, 

showing what and under what conditions the output is executed, the work is performed or the 

service is performed, and the actual results indicate the degree and the way of accomplishing the 

proposed goals. 

The theory of information applicable in the accounting area has been the subject of research by 

many scientists of great value, being so-called scientific information. Peter Drucker, a management 

professor in his post-capitalist society, says that "today science is more important to the welfare of 

nations than capital or labor." (Drucker,1994, p. 189).  Conducting actions in accordance with 

predetermined tasks and values is largely conditioned by the quality of the information, the speed 
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of processing and the opportunity to turn it into the decision-making process. The link between 

economic information and the management act can be represented as follows: 

 

 
Fig.1.1 Relation between information and managerial  

Source: own processing 

In order for economic information to fulfill its role in the process of leadership, background 

and formulation of the decision, it must possess qualities: and add to these qualitative attributes 

(Verboncu, 2004, p. 52) of information and some specific parameters that we consider relevant, 

respectively: 

- dynamism, in the sense of emphasizing the processes of work in their evolution rather 

than static; 

- synthesis and comprehension, ie the presentation of economically-tailored messages 

adapted to managers in a permanent crisis of time; 

- the specificity, given by the adaptation of the information to the user's particularities - 

regarding the level of training, the degree of information, the time of the specificity of 

the problem to be solved. 

The useful information, in our opinion, is the one requested at various levels of decision by 

an economic entity, necessary to elaborate and put into practice the strategy and tactical measures 

appropriate to the overall purpose of improving its position in its environment These actions are 

organized and take place in an uninterrupted cycle. The competent and efficient management of 

economic activities is of vital importance, without which it is not possible to carry out the planned 

activities under the desired economic and financial conditions. Management of an economic activity 

becomes effective when only well-founded decisions based on conclusions or findings that are 

formulated as a result of a detailed study of the technical, economic and organizational phenomena 

and processes, as well as the effects they generate and implicitly , by knowing the causes that 

determined them (Staicu, 2004, p. 46). 

Before recognizing other uses of accounting information, a small commentary on its 

importance should be added. For this reason, large market participants consider accounting 

information to be the center of investment decision-making processes. For example, in US and UK 

studies, investment consultants regard financial statements as the most important source of 

information in investment decision making 

It is also worth noting that accounting information is also important in the financial analysis, 

with five applications being identified in the financial analysis. First, accounting information is used 

to evaluate a business. Four types of valuation include: a comparison of an entity's occurrence 

between successive years, a comparison of an entity's situation with that of its competitors, a 
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comparison of an entity with an industry standard and a comparison of the position of an entity with 

a target, such as the financial budget. A second application is the use of accounting information in 

the forecasting and assessment of the health of the business. The analysis of financial statements 

means a careful extraction of some of them. The most common rates used are liquidity, activity, 

profitability, and leverage. A third application is to evaluate an investment. To understand, we need 

the accounting information for the evaluation models and to see the need for it. The fourth 

application, changes in the business environment have an invariable impact on economic activity. 

The fifth application, the accounting information is used by analysts to see if certain investments 

deserve to be done by analyzing the entity's assets. 

The role of lawful financial and accounting information in the decision-making process 

Before presenting the accounting information and its role in the development of an 

economic entity, it is appropriate to discuss some aspects of information, decision-making, 

financial-accounting information. 

Accounting measures and records economic activities by analyzing the data they receive for 

future use. Second, the data is stored for as long as necessary and then processed to become useful 

information. Information is communicated to interested parties through reports in various forms. It 

may be said that gross data relating to economic activities represent data entries in the accounting 

system, and processed information, useful to decision-makers, are information outputs through 

various forms of reporting. 

Practically, the main responsibility and occupation of a manager is to make decisions but 

also to be the most informed person in the economic entity. The information is collected both in the 

financial statements and within the entity, employees, administrator, accountant. The Explanatory 

Dictionary of the Romanian Language defines the decision as "a decision taken after examining a 

problem, a situation, a solution adopted from several possible . 

Romanian Economists I.Ionaĸcu, A. and M. Stere Tiberiu defining decision as a process of 

"transformation of primary information a decision maker in shares in an organization or a part of 

the organizationò όLƻƴŀǒŎǳ Σ нллоΣ ǇΦ рύ. 

Russian economist A. Seremet mentions:òalthough each decision is unique and can not be 

represented as linked to rules, stages or periodic constraints, it is subordinated to internal logic - this 

is the cycle of substantiation of decisionsò (Sheremet, 2000, p. 132). 

Based on the analysis of the various views of the specialists, we can say that the decision is 

the direction of action chosen to achieve one or more objectives, or a conscious line of action 

chosen from a number of possibilities the decision-maker has to solve problem. Thus, it is 

concluded that the decision is taken in a context of perfect awareness, that is, the manager takes the 

best decision that assures its usefulness, establishing the entity's strategy and the effective use of 

available material and human resources. 

The role of accounting information is to ensure a stable development as well as the 

realization of the cycles that characterize the purpose of the activities with as few perturbations as 

possible. "Although the information used for decision-making by managers is mostly provided by 

management accounting, financial accounting also produces information for current client or 

supplier management and for substantiating the investment and financing decision (FeleagŁ, 1998, 

p. 44). 

The role of accounting in economic and social life means that whatever the nature of the 

system in which it operates in the context of a market economy, it has to account for itself to its 

partners, internal or external users of accounting information. The instrument through which the 

entity informs its environment about what it does, about the position, the entity's performance is the 

accounting. 

Under the competitive conditions of the market economy, the complexity of economic 

activities determines the role of economic and financial information in decision-making. Of 

particular importance is the quality of information. This depends on the quality of the decision taken 

regardless of the time horizon to which the decision refers (short or long term). The quality of the 
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decision is subject to a set of complex conditions, determining the quality of the information used, 

as well as the managerial skills held and applied by the decision-makers. The most representative 

sources of economic data and economic data are economic planning, economic evidence 

(accounting, statistics, operative evidence) and other sources, such as economic and financial 

legislation. According to some authors, 46-50% of all economic information is provided by 

accounting. "Information, as an element around which all human actions in social and economic 

context glide, has in the economic and financial field as the main supplier the accounting." 

The role of accounting in economic and social life means that whatever the nature of the 

system in which it operates in the context of a market economy, it has to account for itself to its 

partners, internal or external users of accounting information. The instrument through which the 

entity informs its environment about what it does, about the position, the entity's performance is the 

accounting. 

Under the competitive conditions of the market economy, the complexity of economic 

activities determines the role of economic and financial information in decision-making. Of 

particular importance is the quality of information. This depends on the quality of the decision taken 

regardless of the time horizon to which the decision refers (short or long term). The quality of the 

decision is subject to a set of complex conditions, determining the quality of the information used, 

as well as the managerial skills held and applied by the decision-makers. The most representative 

sources of economic data and economic data are economic planning, economic evidence 

(accounting, statistics, operative evidence) and other sources, such as economic and financial 

legislation. According to some authors, 46-50% of all economic information is provided by 

accounting. "Information, as an element around which all human actions in social and economic 

context glide, has in the economic and financial field as the main supplier the accounting." 

The role of accounting in economic and social life means that whatever the nature of the 

system in which it operates in the context of a market economy, it has to account for itself to its 

partners, internal or external users of accounting information. The instrument through which the 

entity informs its environment about what it does, about the position, the entity's performance is the 

accounting. 

Under the competitive conditions of the market economy, the complexity of economic 

activities determines the role of economic and financial information in decision-making. Of 

particular importance is the quality of information. This depends on the quality of the decision taken 

regardless of the time horizon to which the decision refers (short or long term). The quality of the 

decision is subject to a set of complex conditions, determining the quality of the information used, 

as well as the managerial skills held and applied by the decision-makers. The most representative 

sources of economic data and economic data are economic planning, economic evidence 

(accounting, statistics, operative evidence) and other sources, such as economic and financial 

legislation. According to some authors (1988), 46-50% of all economic information is provided by 

accounting. "The information, as an element around which all human actions in social and 

economic context glide, has in the economic and financial field as the main supplier the 

accounting." 

The quality of the accounting information is evaluated according to the objectives of the 

information, the information needs of the users so that the information provides a complete, clear, 

loyal and precise description of the economic phenomenon it refers to. Accounting information, the 

raw material in the decision-making process, is the key to the development of the economic entity, 

the quality of information having an important role in developing managerial decisions, helping to 

achieve the main objective of management, namely the continuation of the entity's activity. 

Modeling of accounting information according to stakeholder interests 

Financial reports respond to the needs of users, according to their interests. If at first sight 

we believe that interested parties are useful to the whole set of financial statements, it has been 

shown that each interested party has another way of calculating the interest or relative to that entity. 
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With the help of different categories of information and economic and financial indicators, 

any interested party in an entity can make an assessment of the entity's financial position, 

performance, financial position, and help them in the decision-making process. Economic and 

financial indicators are regulated and classified into different groups. Indicator calculation and 

analysis helps management to assess the entity's status from one financial year to another and to 

perform benchmarking with other entities in the same industry or size. 

Directive no. 34/2013 on the annual financial statements, the consolidated financial 

statements and the related reports of certain types of enterprises provides for a series of economic 

and financial indicators presented in the explanatory notes, one of which refers to the calculation of 

the main economic and financial indicators with four groups of indicators . 

- Liquidity indicators 

- Risk indicators 

- Profitability indicators 

- Solvency ratios. 

In the accounting note no. 9, the main economic-financial indicators and the way of their 

calculation are presented: 

Table no. 1  Economic and financial indicators 

Category of indicators Indicators 

Liquidity indicators  Current liquidity indicator 

The liquidity indicator immediately 

Risk indicators Indicator of indebtedness 

 Interest coverage indicator 

Activity indicators  Input or outflow rate of the entity's cash flows 

 The entity's ability to control the circulating capital and core 

business activities of the entity 

 Speed of inventory rotation 

 Flow rate of customer flows 

 Rate of rotation of supplier loans 

 Speed of rotation of fixed assets 

 Speed of rotation of total assets 

Profitability indicators  Return on capital employed 

 Gross margin on sales 

Source : Directive no. 34/2013 on the annual financial statements, the consolidated financial 

statements and the related reports of certain types of enterprises 

The information provided by these indicators, as well as those presented both in the assets, 

debts and equity situation, in the results account and in the explanatory notes, helps managers and 

other stakeholders to learn as much as possible about the entity under review. 

Managers and shareholders must aim to achieve short-term goals that contribute to 

achieving long-term growth of the entity's assets, the only one that allows the continuation of 

business. 

When calculating and analyzing the economic and financial indicators, it is envisaged: 

- Establishing the net patrimony, respectively the book value of shareholders' equity; 

- Determination of financial health, respectively detection of possible financial imbalances 

that would endanger the continuity of exploitation 

- State of liquidity and solvency of the entity; 

- Determining its financial flexibility based on the cash flow table; 

- Characterization of the efficiency of the patrimonial elements; 

- Drawing up revenue and expenditure budgets and financing plans 

- Evaluating the entity's performance. 

The analysis of the financial situation is based on: 
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- The Position Of The Financial Position, 

- The Statement Of Profit Or Loss And Other Items Of Comprehensive Income, 

- The Statement Of Changes In Equity, 

- The Cash - Flow And Cash Flows 

- Notes to financial statements. 
 

Taking into account a certain balance that must exist between the duration of a funded 

operation and the duration of the corresponding financing means, the position of the financial 

position highlights two main funding rules, with the permanent financing needs being covered from 

permanent equity capital and temporary needs will be funded from temporary resources. Failure to 

comply with these funding rules will result in a financial imbalance situation. 

The impact of performance on the disclosure of financial statements has been studied over 

time and we can say that a performant entity will provide the iterable parties with more information 

about its performance to be considered more attractive to other similar entities. It is more open to 

the disclosure of financial information, in order to highlight its outstanding results and the value of 

the entity will increase. 

To highlight the extent to which stakeholders are attracted by the financial information 

provided by the entities as well as the way they are calculated and interpreted, as well as the main 

economic and financial indicators they are directly interested in when deciding on the entity are 

shown below: 
Table no.2 Indicators calculated on the basis of economic and financial information according to 

stakeholder interests 

Nr.crt  Indicators calculated on the basis of economic and financial information according to 

stakeholder interests 

1 1. Information about the financial position. 

1.1. Fixed Assets 

1.2. Current assets 

1.3. Expenditures and incomes counted in advance 

1.4. Debts 

1.5. Provisions 

1.6. Own equity 

2 2. Performance information 

2.1. Fiscal value 

2.2. Income, expenses and operating result 

2.3. Income, expenses and financial result 

2.4. Total revenue and expenditure 

2.5. Gross and net result 

3 3.  Information on the main economic and financial indicators 

3.1. Liquidity indicators 

3.2. Risk indicators 

3.3. Activity indicators 

3.4. Profitability indicators 

3.5.  Self-financing capacity 

3.6. The level and evolution of the profit rate 

4 4. Information on the main stock market indices 

4.1. Capitalization on the stock market 

4.2. Share price (minimum, average, maximum, end of year) 

4.3. Per Share / Profit Per Share (PER price earnings ratio) 

4.4. Result / number of shares (EPSearnings per share) 

4.5. Price per share / book value (P / BV price ti book value) 

4.6. Dividend Per Action (DIVY) 
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5 5. Forecasting and prospective information 

5.1. Comparison of expected turnover with end-of-year 

5.2. Comparison of the expected result with the end of the financial year 

5.3. Forecasts of turnover and profit in the next financial year 

5.4. Predicted risks that can influence the turnover and the outcome 

5.5. Predicted livestock objectives and programs 

5.6. Policy for the renewal or modernization of tangible assets 

5.7. Dividend distribution policy 

6 6. Further information 

6.1. Exploitation of fixed and variable operating costs 

6.2. Financing the activity 

6.3. Treasury flows 

6.4. Change in equity 

6.5. Inflation and its Influence 

6.6. Tax and tax breakdown 

6.7. Procedures and accounting methods used 

6.8. Obligations on environmental protection and social responsibility 

Source: own processing 

In order to link the economic and financial information presented in the above table and 

stakeholder interests, we will present a summary of the users and the main information they need to 

substantiate their decisions in the following table: 
Table no. 3 Economic and financial information that stakeholders need in substantiating decisions 

Types of 

users 

Users Indicators calculated on the basis of economic and financial 

information according to stakeholder interests 

Internal 

users 

Management It needs information to settle with external users on the concrete way of 

managing the resources entrusted and the distribution of results. They 

need all possible information, available as soon as possible, according to 

their needs. 

 employes As main suppliers of work, they use information that leads to profitability 

and continuity of business, which are useful in assessing the entity's 

ability to provide remuneration, retirement, profit, prizes, and other social 

aspects (jobs, health insurance etc.). They need performance information, 

Information on key economic and financial indicators, Information on 

stock indices, Prospective and prospective information, Information on 

financial position. 

External 

users 

Shareholders As capital and capital-related venture capitalists, they use information on 

the performance of the invested capital, in conjunction with the expected 

risk and dividends to be distributed. They need information to decide 

whether to buy, retain or sell "capital". Need information on performance, 

Information on key economic and financial indicators, Main stock market 

information, Prospective and prospective information. (2,3,4,5) 

 Financial 

creditors 

As providers of bank loans and guarantees, it uses information about the 

entity's ability to repay loans at maturity and pay interest. They need 

information on financial position, performance information, information 

on key economic and financial indicators, prospective and prospective 

information (1,2,3,5). 

 Suppliers and 

other 

commercial 

creditors; 

Consume information to create an image of the entity concerned by 

searching for information such as performance indicators (liquidity, 

solvency, profitability etc).  

 Customers  As business partners, they need information to support the manufacturing 

cycle, ensuring the continuity of the entity's business, especially on the 

long-term contracts. They need Information on Financial Position, 

Performance Information, Other Information.(1,2,6) 
 Gouvernment  Consumes information on policies for centrally allocating budget 
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resources, taxation and building macroeconomic information (national 

income, GDP, etc.). They need information such as: Exploitation of Fixed 

and Variable Exploitation Expenses, Funding of Activity, Treasury Flows, 

Own Ownership Change, Inflation and Its Influence Statement of Taxes 

and Taxes, Accounting Procedures and Methods Used, Obligations on 

Environmental Protection and Responsibility social.(6) 

 The audience  The public is, however, interested in knowing the stakeholders in the 

sector of interest, being a potential investor, employee, supplier or buyer. 

As a potentially interested party, it needs performance information, 

Information on key economic and financial indicators, Information on 

core stock indices, Prospective and prospective information, Information 

on financial position. 

 Court Courts Depending on conflicts and court processes, the entity must present the 

financial statements. Judicial experts make an assessment of the situation 

and issue a favorable or unwarranted opinion. They need performance 

information, Information on key economic and financial indicators, 

Information on core stock indices, Prospective and prospective 

information, Information on financial position. 

Source: own processing 

Although not all the information needs of these users can be satisfied by the set of financial 

statements, entities provide common information to all users. Since investors are venture 

capitalists, the provision of financial statements that satisfy their needs more than meets the 

majority of other users' needs. 

Conclusion 

It is obvious that the activity carried out by the manager of an economic entity brings the 

entity on the same waterline as that of the competing entities and offers a high quality of the 

information provided. His skills are shaped over time over many challenges facing the economic 

environment. Decisions are taken through multiple analyzes of either information or indicators 

based on information. 

It is unanimously acknowledged that at the level of each economic entity there is a growing 

demand for accounting information, which is managed through such information system. 

Accounting information is a significant component of economic information and, at the same time, 

is the basic component of the accounting information system. In a general sense, it ensures the 

knowledge and control of the heritage situation and the results obtained. Data relating to the 

existence, movement, and transformation of patrimonial items as well as the result obtained 

become accounting information once they have undergone processing, if they are novelty and only 

to the extent that they can be used (useful) to characterize an activity carried out by the economic 

entity from which they originated. Accounting information is the basis for determining effective 

ratios of all economic and financial operations or transactions and also provides the certainty for 

the development of viable forecasts. In this context, it can be considered that for an unpredictable 

future, accounting information will be the most important component of the economic information 

system at the level of each entity, and that "each of the stakeholders in the entity proceeds to 

accounting information because it is the only source that can provide the image of its activity and 

its situation, starting from the cash flows and masses that for a given period have been interested in 

it. "For the current and also for the future, accounting is an asset or method of obtaining economic 

and financial information useful both for the management of the entity and its shareholders as well 

as for a diverse range of users, which gives it an increasingly social character. In the continuous 

process of organizing and managing the activities of the entities, the role of accounting is 

increasing. 

We consider that the three aspects considered in the introduction were theoretically 

approached in the body of the paper, referring to the legislation but also to the authors whose 

studies were important for the literature. 
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By its method of knowledge and by its specific procedures, accounting provides the 

necessary amount of information to enable management to discover internal reserves with regard to 

the efficient use of resources and labor to mobilize them. 

Accounting should contribute to the achievement of three major objectives, namely: 

establishing a correct diagnosis of the entity; finding new ways to quickly highlight the anomalies 

and deficiencies that appear; helping managers choose optimal solutions. We believe that these 

three objectives can only be achieved as far as quality accounting and professional work is 

concerned. 
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Roman education, culture and economic forms 
In the Roman epoch education began to spread around the year 2000 B.C. The basics of 

literature, writing and arithmetic operations were taught; learning Latin, Greek, grammar and 

literature in general was provided. Certainly, education was still a privilege, and poor families 

couldnôt afford it, nevertheless, it led to a remarkable evolution of techniques, arts, architecture and 

so on. 

We must not forget that the territorial expansion meant an extraordinary expansion of trade 

and market activities which, always, led to the evolution of economy and methods of accounting 

emphasis. 

The control of the Mediterranean guaranteed the prevalence of maritime commercial wheels, 

more rapid than the terrestrial ones.   

The territorial field offered the possibility to impose taxes and obligations to the subordinate 

population; it led to the public administration and to an accounting practice capable of presenting 

and being able to register very big values of treasury. 

So, one could think that the Romans knew well structured forms of accountancy and 

inventory; from it derives different debates on knowing the accounting writing with the double 

entry method by the Romans. 

Returning to the Roman economy, the population growth in cities favoured the formation of 

the market in cities, the banking activities and the particular productive forms like workshops. We 

can imagine the last ones like the present equivalents of small family craftsmanship, that the 

commander who owned them was also the owner of the production, the productive processes and 

supervised the apprentices or the assistants. 

Here were made products with the biggest added value; craftsmanship began to generate a 

substantial part of incomes and products in the urban society. 

Rural economy was marked, on one hand, by big owners, led by the wealthy Roman 

families of patricians, who carried out agricultural activities by exploiting slavery; on the other 

hand, we find small landowners, rural families characterized by closed economic systems, based on 

their own consumption, with no market transitions or subsistence economies. 

We considered and described these economic mechanisms, like shops and small nuclei from 

the rural area-  countryman, or owners of small lands, the future standard of all productive and 

agricultural activities, from this moment to the end of the Middle Ages. 

In fact, after the barbarian invasions and the constitution of feudalism, the rich landowners 

disappeared, being replaced by the noble and feudal families who obtained the possession of the 

lands. 

The rebirth of trade between the 11th and 15th centuries, by the maritime republic, the war 

of the centenary (from 1337 to 1453 A.D.)  and the subsequent appearance of nation- states  would  
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pass until  the end of feudalism and the rebirth of economy which resulted, due to the new figure of 

the merchant- entrepreneur from 1500, in the first industrial revolution at the end of year 1700. 

Accountancy in the Roman epoch and the debate on the double entry 

After the assimilation of Greek accounting culture, the Romans developed and improved 

very much accountancy; some researchers assumed that this civilization was the first which knew 

about the accountancy method in double entry. 

Among the supporters of this thesis is Plinio Bariola in a dispute with Giovanni Rossi who 

wanted to prove the impossibility that double writing would have been invented by the Romans. 

Bariola (1897) was in favour of the thesis of Georg Niebuhr
1
; his researches at Vatican led 

to the appearance of some ancient parchments by Seneca and Cicero, from which the researcher 

convinced himself of finding the use of the double entry method. He didnôt bring any proof to 

support his thesis, but being very well known at that time, many accepted his researches. 

The key to this story would be a brochure in which Cicero wrote about the Manio Fontejoôs
2
 

work, a Roman clerk who held many civil services, who, returning to Rome, was accused of 

stealing three millions of sestertii during his mission as treasurer. Cicero wrote in defence of 

Fontejo, quoting some accounting books and their use; these had to comply with the requirements 

imposed by the Valerian law, remembered in the accounting tables introduced by Irtulejo, in which 

it was specified that a quarter of the value of the credit was returned to the creditors, specifying that 

the rest of three quarters from that value would be paid by debtors to extinguish completely the 

credit. 

Based on Irtulejoôs accounting directives, to demonstrate the correctness of the registers, 

Fontejo had to have two tables, one with one quarter and the other one with three quarters: 

¶ In the quadrangular table with one quarter were present the collected and paid sums, with 

the evaluation of the quarter; 

¶ In the table with three quarters were written the unpaid sums and unobtained earnings 

with respect to the three quarters. 

From these manuscripts, Niebuhr deduced the knowledge of the quaestors of the balanced 

double entry, precising that: 

     ñ [é] if  one had been paid a quarter from his credit, the paid sum was due to his debts, 

and the unpaid three quarters  were registered as an earning ò Niebuhr quoted above. 

        According to Rossi (1896), this conclusion cannot be proven and the only plausible 

interpretation regarding what Cicero wrote is that the tables were written in order to remember:  

¶ the paid or collected sums, of the quarter 

¶ the earned or lost sums, for the three quarters; 

The purpose would be to allow the treasury to take it back, with the possibility to have an 

answer with the cash and the debt or the credit inventory. As Rossi himself emphasized: 

ñ[é]  it is not enough to be one or more double roundings in order to form the double 

writing method.  

[é] All who know how to write and want an elementary and natural way of keeping their 

things, will do hundreds of double roundings; without doing a double writing.ò 

Even in this case, the lack of direct and complete sources makes impossible the confirmation 

of respecting the objective question. It remains, however, that it is not possible to confirm or to 

deny the possibility that the Romans knew the double entry method, already in the 2nd century 

B.C., even if, in Stefano Coronellaôs opinion, it would be most unlikely. 

Certainly, the development obtained by accountancy was due to the evolution of Roman 

culture and society from the years 100 B.C. to the epoch of barbarian invasion in the 5th century 

                                                           
1
 BerthodGeog Niebuhr was a historian, born in Copenhagen in 1775, from 1815 remained seven years at the Vatican to 

research in the archives where he also found fragments of writings by Cicerone, Tito Livio e Seneca 
2
 ManioFontejo has held many public works in Rome and in areas of the Roman Empire. He was accused of embezzling 

unduly during his Office as public Treasures money for which he was tried. Cicero made two speeches in his defence 

that Niebuhr has founf the fragments where in some notes he describes rules for keepingof accounting books. 
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A.D.; especially, in the complex system of accountancy books, many of them being the present 

accountancy books.   

The main actors and accountancy books 

The art of keeping the accounts in Roman civilization was already known from the period 

from the seven kings of Rome.  

All the upper-class families had and made accounts, in fact, the economic events of private 

managements were reported in the writings of the so-called Paterfamilias. 

It was proven that Roman accountancy developed first in the private area and then spread 

and improved at the state level in public administration. 

Before Egypt annexation to the Roman Empire in 30 B.C., accountancy was kept on wax 

tables named tabulae; used to wipe the wax from the old tables, containing dated information, so 

that to re-use it by updating it. If we consider the decay that the same wax has  in time, it is easy to 

guess how difficult  it is to find an integral tabulae. 

By the Egyptian annexation, after having used  the wax and clay tables for many centuries, 

writing on parchment and papyrus spread. Despite this, even this type of supports were decayed in 

time, but some very rare manuscripts  were found . 

Among these, one of the most important discoveries dates back to the 2nd century B.C.; it is 

the Karanis papyrus in which some accounts seem to be written in double entry. Historians 

managed to rebuild the complex Roman accountant and to go back to the books used in that epoch 

due to some discoveries. Referring to such book-keeping, it is necessary first to make the distinction 

between the private books related to leadership and the books with public and commercial 

character.  

The ones of private nature were: 

¶ Kalendarium was the book where the payments, the collections, the lent and the borrowed 

capitals with the relevant interests were written. Some claim that it is about a register for 

special administrative -accounting registrations (regarding individual clients or individual 

activities), towards creditors and debtors, but it is not possible to check this hypothesis; 

¶ Liber patrimonii or libellus familiae, was an inventory book of descriptive form, in which 

were registered different patrimonial goods and different categories of such goods, like 

stocks, metals, lands. In the richest families, this book was accompanied by 

commentarium, a subsidiary register; 

¶ Codex accepti et expensi, was the register in which were indicated the payment 

obligations and the sums at the due date that must be collected. Some think that this book 

is similar to the ñcash bookò, however, it looks more like the present register in which all 

the documents on the basis of which actions of sale and purchase were done, were written 

down, with the difference that, the Codex accepti had a legal value, and the present one 

has only an informative and mnemonic purpose;  

¶ Codices rationum domesticarum, was a set of auxiliary books in which the most 

important values were written or emphasized. 

The Roman traders and bankers and then the public administration developed other 

accounting books of commercial nature: 

¶ Nevertheless, Kalendarium and Codex accepti et expensi, similarly to the previously seen 

accounts; 

¶ Codex rationum, namely ñthe register of accountsò was the main accounting register and 
looked like the present register (journal); 

¶ Adversaria or Ephemerides, was a document of ñfirst entryò in which were registered and 

annotated memories and events, in a simple way; 

¶ Transcriptitium, was  very similar to a journal book; in it, the annotations and 

registrations from Adversaria were written, but here, in a detailed and exact way. 
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3.1 The role of the church and the monasteries 

 After the constitution of the Papal States in 752 A.D., the role of the church became 

overwhelming and not to be neglected.  

From the beginning of the 4th century, the Roman episcopacy became the owner of 

buildings and lands as a result of many donations of the believers, so that in a short time the 

accumulated property reached a significant entity. 

 Thanks to the papal officials and priests that had to make many inventories, also the 

reference, the practice of accountancy resumed and caught interest; many accounting charges 

became so important that they gave birth to the class of Logothetes. Within a short time, papal 

Accountancy resumed to a level similar to that seen in the previous   Roman period. 

Another important factor is education; it was a luxury for the rich and the leaders, but the 

monks and the monarchs wanted to keep and transmit classical Greek and Latin cultures after the 

barbarian invasions which provoked the degradation of the culture and literacy levels. 

 These religious figures were counter-tendencies, carried out study, reading and meditation 

activities in monasteries and often taught basic elements of education to the poor. 

 Thus, the accounting practices soon spread among these houses of worship and bees, 

many inventories and reports found in monasteries are a proof of it.  

3.2 Invention of double entry: the birth of modern accountancy  

From a historical point of view, officially identified by the publication of ñLiber Abaciò by 

Luca Pacioli in 1494, with the illustration of the writing method in double entry, modern logic 

begins. 

 Over the centuries, such surveys would evolve in modern ways of accountancy and 

registration; nevertheless, the debate over where and who first invented this methodology is in 

progress, there are, also, many theories regarding the reasons for which this new technique 

appeared. 

With the historical digression, previously described, we tried to offer the reader an idea 

about the forces, the causes and motivations that led to the development of double entry; in this 

respect, it seems that now it is clear the change of context and culture, followed by resuming 

education and the accounting technique, together with the increase of trade and mercantilism, led to 

the necessity of a more appropriate method of registration of the exchange of economic activity at 

that time. 

Werner Sombart (1902) considered the invention of this new method as a result of ñ 

rationality of economic thoughtò, derived from a logic that now we will name capitalist. 

Nevertheless, Basil Yamey (1940), another well known economist, decided to confront 

Sombart showing that there is only a small correlation between following the profit of the traders 

and the new types of accounting calculations.  

Other two authors, especially Franz Arlinghaus (2006) and Ulla Kypta proposed some 

theories about this topic, considering the commercial and social- cultural context between 1350- 

1500. 

Arlinghaus focused on the analysis of accountancy of a trade company in 1370, managed by 

Toro di Berto ( from Florence ) and by Francesco Datini ( from Prato). 

We must remind, as we will see later, that the double entry developed on the Italian territory, 

in the banks of the merchants and probably in Venice. 

  According to the scholar, this new keeping of accounts was more strictly related to 

what   he called ñ biological memoryò of merchants, with this term he  meant  the union between 

their vision, their logic and the way in which they memorized information.  

Conclusion 

The Romans taking the knowledge of conquered peoples gave a strong innovative 

contribution to accounting measurements by introducing many tools used today. They have 

introduced the Adeversaria that corresponds to the current Prime Note book and the Codex Accepti 

ed expensi the current Cash Book. In this regard some scholars have hypothesized the existence of 
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double entry-bookkeeping system already in Romans time arguing that the terms ñacceptiò and 

ñexpensiò are equivalent to the current ñinputò and ñoutputò due to the literal meaning of the verbs 

ñto giveò and ñto haveò. Undoubtedly the balancing accounts principle which represents the 

cornerstone of the doubleentry accounting system was already present at the time of the Sumerians 

but not enough to structure a complex accounting system. 
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Abstract. In todayôs society every state is based on an annual budget of income and expenses. To realize a 

constant balance in terms of public revenues and expenditures balance, States must use all means necessary. Thus, as a 

main form of public expenditure coverage, the system of taxes and duties stands. That is why the main reason for 

choosing this theme was due to the impact of taxes and taxes on the economic independence of any state. Taking into 

account that these are the main means of generating the resources needed to cover public spending, fiscal policy must 

ensure that budget revenues are as voluminous as possible. My study case is SC Bermas SA because it is a company 

with a tradition in our city and has a very specialized accounting department. Also, this company attracted me by being 

listed on the Bucharest Stock Exchange. In the present paper I have tried to combine the elements of taxation theory in 

order to better understand what the taxes and duties are, what is their role for society, what are the legislative aspects 

that are defining our country and how we rank European Union. 
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Theoretical background 

We are currently in the middle of a vast process of reforming tax legislation based on a 

market economy, in order to harmonize with the European Union's legal and fiscal universe. This 

process has attracted a great deal of legislative fluctuation and numerous difficulties in the correct 

application of the tax legal norm in time, space and people. 

That is why the main reason for choosing this theme was due to the impact of taxes on the 

economic independence of any state. Taking into account that these are the main means of 

generating the resources needed to cover public spending, fiscal policy must ensure that budget 

revenues are as voluminous as possible. 

The main objective of the article is to carry out a synthetic analysis of the national tax 

system. In this direction, we have achieved a bibliographic study to discover some significant 

aspects. So, taking into account the role and importance of the taxation system in the economy, in 

this article I chose to analyze some practical aspects of the beer industry in terms of excise duty.  

National legislative aspects on excise 

From the accounting point of view, all excise duties calculated on the basis of supporting 

documents and payable by legal entities on behalf of the company are expenses of exploitation 

cycle, are tax deductible for taxable profit, and result in an integrated report that affects 

profitability, excise duties always precede the tax on added value. The difficult problem of excise 

duties is not the accounting, but rather the multitude of tax rules, the technique of calculating the 

basis of calculation and the compulsory fiscal documents. 

Excise duty on beer changes annually, calculated on the basis of the exchange rate 

established on the first working day of October of the previous year, published in the Official 

Journal of the European Union. 

At the level of the European Union, member states apply excise duties and fix their rates in 

accordance with Directive 92/84 / EEC of 19 October 1992 on the harmonization of the structures 

of excise duties on alcohol and alcoholic beverages, as amended and supplemented. The European 

Union has tried, through the aforementioned directive, to provide a uniform framework for the 

application of excise duties. The Directive allows Member States to decide on the level of excise 

duty rates by offering only limits on excise duty rates. 

National regulations have undergone numerous changes in order to create a uniform basis of 

application of excise duties that is in line with EU provisions. These changes have been positively 

perceived by the business community as they have contributed to the harmonization with European 
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Union regulations and have led to a better interpretation of tax legislation on excise duties ( VintilŁ, 

2013). 

In Romania, the excise duty regime was introduced for the first time in 2003, with Law no. 

227/2015 on the Fiscal Code, as amended and supplemented. Excise duties on alcohol and alcoholic 

beverages are provided for in Title VIII, the whole of which is in fact a takeover of the 

aforementioned directive. 

As we can see, the harmonized excise duties present a series of specific features very well 

defined by the Romanian legislation (see Law no.227 / 2015, art.335 - 336 ). 

Harmonized excise duties are special charges levied directly or indirectly on the 

consumption of the following products: alcohol and alcoholic beverages, manufactured tobacco, 

energy products and electricity. Excise products shall be subject to excise duty at the time of their 

production, including, where appropriate, at the time of their extraction, within the territory of the 

European Union and when they are imported into the territory of the European Union. 

Excise duty becomes chargeable when released for consumption and in the Member State of 

release for consumption. The conditions of chargeability and the level of excise duty applicable 

shall be those in force on the date on which the excise duty becomes chargeable in the Member 

State in which release for consumption takes place. 

Release for consumption means: the exit of excise goods, including irregularity, from a 

suspensive excise regime; the holding of excise goods outside a suspensive arrangement for excise 

duty for which excise duty has not been levied in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter; 

the production of excisable products, including irregularities, outside a suspensive regime of excise 

duties; the importation of excise goods, including irregularity, unless excise goods are placed, 

immediately after importation, under suspension of excise duty; the use of excisable products inside 

the fiscal warehouse other than as raw material. 

Issuance of the right is considered to be the possession of trade marks for a person of the 

excise goods that have been released in another Member State and because excise duties have not 

been paid in Romania (see Law no.227 / 2015). 

As we can see, each excise duty payer has a series of legal debts that he must fulfill. Excise 

payers are required to register with the competent authority. Any excise payer is responsible for the 

correct calculation and payment of the excise duties to the state budget at the legal term and for the 

legal declaration of the excise statements to the competent authority, according to the legal 

provisions. 

The time limit for payment of the excise duty is until the 25th of the month following the 

month in which the excise duty becomes chargeable, except in cases expressly stipulated for 

another payment term. 

There are a few exceptions: in the case of importing an excisable product which is not 

placed under a suspensive regime, the moment of payment of the excise duty is the moment of 

registration of the customs import declaration; in the case of an excise product for which the excise 

has not been exigible beforehand. Any excise tax payer, with the exception of the authorized 

importer, is required to submit a statement of excise duty to the competent authority, whether or not 

the excise duty is due for that month. Any excise duty payer is required to submit an annual excise 

tax return to the competent authority, in accordance with the legal provisions on payment 

obligations to the state budget, by 30 April of the year following the reporting date. 

The authorized warehousekeeper, the registered consignee, the registered consignor and the 

authorized importer have the obligation to lodge with the competent authority a guarantee, at the 

level established according to the provisions of the methodological norms, to ensure the payment of 

the excise duties that may become due. 

Where the authorized warehousekeeper, the registered consignee, the registered consignor or 

the authorized importer records outstanding tax liabilities administered by National Agency for 

Fiscal Administration with more than 30 days of legal payment, the warranty extends to these legal 

obligations and without any other formality. 
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In the case of authorized ware housekeepers, minimum and maximum levels of guarantees 

are set by methodological rules, depending on the nature and volume of the excise goods to be 

manufactured or stored. The guarantee is valid throughout the European Union. The type, the 

method of calculation, the value, the duration and the conditions for the reduction of the guarantee 

are laid down in the methodological norms, by type of activities and product groups. 

As we can see, the amounts due to excise duty are calculated in lei using the following 

formula (see Law no.227 / 2015, art. 343): 

A = C x K x Q, where: 

A -  the excise amount; 

C -  Number of degrees Plato; 

K -  the level of the excise duty provided in the Fiscal Code; 

For beer, the Plato grade is included in the technical specification developed on the basis of 

the standard in force for each beer assortment and must be the same as the one entered on the 

marketing labels of the respective beer varieties. 

For products resulting from the basic beer blend with non-alcoholic beverages, the number 

of Plato grades is that of the beer base of the mixture and is entered on the label.  

The allowable deviation between the number of degrees Plato inscribed on the label and the 

number of Plato degrees determined in beer or beer base of the non-alcoholic beverage mix is 0.5 

degrees Plato. 

The financial management of excises at SC BERMAS SA 

S.C. Bermas S.A. is a fiscal warehouse of beer production operating under the fiscal 

warehouse authorization no RO0056033PP01 dated 31.03.2014 issued by the Commission for the 

authorization of harmonized excisable products operators established at the level of the Ministry of 

Public Finance. The authorization was obtained following the application submitted to the 

competent bodies accompanied by the documents established by the Methodological Norms for the 

application of the Fiscal Code. 

As an independent beer manufacturer with a nominal production capacity of up to 200,000 

hl of beer production facilities, to benefit from the reduced level of excise duty, SC Bermas SA 

submits annually to the competent authority, up to January 15, a self-declaration of the production 

capacities it holds. 

As an authorized fiscal warehouse, SC Bermas SA is required to submit to the competent 

authority also a guarantee to ensure payment of the excise duties that may become chargeable. The 

guarantee represents 6% of the value of the excise duties related to excise outputs in the last year, 

but not less than 6% of the excise value of the products that would result from the technological 

production capacities. 

In this sense, SC Bermas SA submitted to the territorial tax authority a letter of bank 

guarantee at the level of the fixed amount by decision of the competent authority. The level of 

collateral is updated periodically reflecting changes in the volume of the business or the level of 

excise duty due. Also, SC Bermas SA submits annually, until January 31, a form of analysis of the 

establishment of the guarantee for updating it according to the changes occurred in activity in the 

previous year. 

If we make a retrospective of taxes, fees and contributions, the professional accountant 

assigned to process, correctly determine the tax bases and to correctly process the accounting 

technique, it is extremely difficult for him to pass a very rich tax legislation but also unstable over 

time, either influenced or the insufficiency of fiscal revenues to the state budget that determines 

another fiscal mechanism by applying other rules of application and taxation of goods. 

Law no. 227/2015 regarding the Fiscal Code with subsequent amendments and completions, 

stipulates that in 2017 the accruals for beer will be calculated at the same level as in the previous 

year, namely 1.82 / hl / 1 degree Plato. From the accounting point of view, all excise duties 

calculated on the basis of supporting documents and payable by legal entities on behalf of the 
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company are operating expenses are tax deductible for taxable profit and result in an integrated 

report that affects profitability, excise duties always preceding value added tax. 

In accordance with the provisions of ORDINANCE no. 3055 of October 29, 2009 for the 

approval of Accounting Regulations in compliance with the European Directives regarding the 

accounting in the accounting of the excise and special funds included in the prices and tariffs, as 

subsequently amended and supplemented, the accounting in the account is made on the account of 

the corresponding debts accounts without passing through income and expense accounts. 

Conclusions and recommendations 

In this paper I have tried to combine the elements of tax legislation with elements of 

accounting practice in order to better understand what excises are, what is their role for society, 

what are the legislative aspects defining for our country and how we rank European Union. 

Regardless of how the taxes are defined, their most important role is financially, because 

they represent the main means of creating the financial resources needed to finance the social needs 

of local and national interest. 

Under current legislation, harmonized excise duties are revenue due to the state budget in 

the form of special taxes levied directly or indirectly on the consumption of the following products: 

alcohol and alcoholic beverages, manufactured tobacco, energy products and electricity (see Law 

no.227 / 2015).  

Following the studies conducted for this paper, we consider it necessary to present the 

following recommendations and proposals:  

¶ identifying mechanisms to enable the taxpayer to meet his tax obligations constrained by 

the need to conduct business. 

¶ regular and accessible regulation of tax concepts so as to avoid problems of interpreting 

the law; 

¶ increasing the professional training of officials within the fiscal control bodies; 

¶ communicating permanently at Community level with Member State authorities; 

¶ systematization and correlation of fiscal legislation with the legislative framework of the 

European Union; 

¶ ensure the stability of basic tax legislation; 

¶ periodical editing of specialized publications on the unitary interpretation of the 

normative framework, regarding the importance of taxes and duties for the good 

performance of the state's activity; 

In today's society, each state is based on an annual revenue and expenditure budget. In order 

to achieve a steady balance in the balance of public revenues and expenditures, States must resort to 

all the necessary means. Thus, as a main form of public expenditure coverage, the system of taxes 

and duties lies. 
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Abstract. A non-current asset, like any other asset of an economic entity, must be valued to be recorded in the 

current accounting and, respectively, for recognition in the annual financial statements. Thus, the valuation determines 

the values at which the patrimonial items will be recognized in the annual financial statements. For evaluation 

purposes, will be taken in account first of all, the general evaluation rules, the main moments when this evaluation 

process takes place, this assuming the choice of a particular assessment base. All these considerations have been the 

main objective of the topic addressed, taking into account also, as in this paper to present the main aspects regarding 

the initial evaluation and the subsequent evaluation of the non-current assets, both theoretically and applicative, with 

the compliance of the accounting provisions given by OMFP 1802/2014. 
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Introduction  

Carrying out the activity of an economic entity requires the existence of a tehnical-material 

basis in which the fixed assets are patrimonial assets, have an important economic role and hold a 

significant share, these assets being intended to serve the economic entity for a long period in its 

activity. Economic entities use assets to produce goods, perform works or provide services capable 

of satisfying the wishes or needs of customers who are willing to pay to obtain them, thus 

contributing to the cash flow of the entity. 

An important aspect of fixed assets is the recognition and measurement of fixed assets, the 

professional judgment used in their recognition, the bases used, the initial valuation, the subsequent 

expenses incurred with the fixed assets and the accounting treatment for depreciation. 

Conceptual delimitation of fixed assets 

Achieving future economic benefits is the goal of any economic entity, the success in 

achieving this goal is largely determined by the investment decisions that will be made, based on 

past experience and often using resources created in the recent past. An investment has as its object, 

from the accounting point of view, either the production or the purchase of an immobilized assets, 

whether is it corporal, intangible or financial. 

Under the asset name, the two assets categories presented in Figure no. 1.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure no. 1. Categories of assets 

 Under the current accounting regulations ( OMFP 1802/2014), an asset must comply with 

the requirements presented in Figure no. 2. 

 

 

 

 

Figure no. 2.  Requirements for qualifying  assets 

Assets 

Fixed assets Current assets 

The resource controlled by the entity as a result of past events 

Expected future economic benefits are expected for the entity 
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